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71n~ce Division

December 31, 2005

To the Honorable Chairman,
Members of the Board of Commissioners, and
Citizens of Columbia County, Georgia:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Columbia County, Georgia, for the year
ended June 30, 2005, was prepared by the Columbia County Yinancial Services Division and is
hereby submitted. This CAFR is being formal!y submitted as required by the Official Cede of
Georgia Annotated, Section 36-81-7 and Rule i5c2-12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of ~e
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the County. To the best of our knowledge and
belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner designed
to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the County as measured by the
financial activity of its various funds. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain a
reasonable understanding of the County’s financial affairs have been included.

~[11e Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in the following four sections:
o The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, a list of principal offiei~s, the

County’s organization chart, and a copy of the Government Finance Officers Association’s
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2004.

o The financial section includes the independent auditor’s report on the financial statements,
management’s discussion and analysis, the basic audited financial statements with notes, and
combining fund statements.

o The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generNly
presented on a multi-year basis, and information required by the Securities and Exchange
Commission under Rule 15C2o 12 of the Securities Exchange Act relating te municipal bend
disclosure.

o The single audit section includes schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards and
the independent auditor’s reports relating to these schedules.

P.O. Box 498

A Community of Pride
o 630 Ronald Reagan Drive

I
A County of Vision o Endless Oppo~unifies

o Evans, Georgia 30809 o phone: 706-868-3347 o fax: 706-868-3385



Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it. Columbia County’s MD&A can be found immediately
following the report of the independent auditor.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Columbia County, established in 1790 and named in honor of Christopher Columbus, is located in
the Central Savannah River Area of Georgia approximately 135 miles east of Atlanta and five miles
northwest of Augusta/Richmond County. The 290 square mile county is bounded on the north by
Thurmond Lake and the Savannah River (separating Columbia County from Lincoln County,
Georgia, and McCormick and Edgefield Counties, South Carolina), on the south and east by
Augusta/Richmond County, and on the west by McDuffie County.

A five-member Board of Commission governs Columbia County. The Board is comprised of one
chairman, elected county wide, and four commissioners, each elected from a separate commission
district serving four year staggered terms. A County Administrator, who is appointed by and
responsible to the Board, directs the daily operation of the County. Services provided to the
approximately 100,000 residents include: public safety (Sheriff’s Office, detention center, E911,
fire), emergency services, community services, public works, planning and development, and other
general governmental services. The County also provides water, sewer, storm water, and solid waste
disposal services to the public.

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The financial reporting entity includes all activities and functions of the primary government (i.e.,
Columbia County, Georgia) as well as all related component units, if any. "Financial
Accountability" is the benchmark used to determine which legally separate entities represent
component units of the primary government. Blended component units, although legally separate
entities, are, in substance, an integral part of the primary government’s operations and, therefore, are
included as part of the primary government. Accordingly, the Columbia County Solid Waste
Management Authority is reported as an Enterprise Fund of the primary government because its sole
purpose is to perform development, leasing, and long-term planning of a solid waste facility for the
County.

The Development Authority of Columbia County, the Columbia County Board of Health, and
Bartram Trail, CDC, Inc. are reported as discretely presented component units in the combined
financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government and to
differentiate their financial positions. The Development Authority serves to promote, pursue, and
implement economic development in the County. The Board of Health serves to operate the public
health department of the County. Bartram Trail, CDC, Inc. is a community development corporation
created to develop, construct, and operate a public golf course in Columbia County.
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The fact that MONEY magazine selected Evans, Georgia, as one of the Best Places to Live in the
Nation in 2005 illustrates that Co~umb~a Co="nty possesses a wonderful quali~ of fife as we~ as
being economically sound. Our median household yearly income was much higher and our cost of
housing, air pollution, and crime rates were much lower than the average for the ~ 00 top locations
intensely studied by the magazine.

Visible growth in retail and housing has oec’a~ed in the last few years, and ~e promise of much
more creates a few "growing pains." However, t]~e County has strived to anticipate these neec~s, a~zd
the needed infrastructure for proposed ~ojects is avaiIab~,e with more being planned. Transpo::tation
needs are a priority, and the Georgia DOT is working el©seXy with the County to ensue safety and
adequate roadways.

For the seventh year in a row, the County has wet raised the mid!age rate for existing services. Sn
2004, fire subscription fees were replaced by a dedicated millage :’ate which reduced home,wrier
cost for fire services. We maintain a "AA" bond ~" "",,a~mg from S & P, Moody’s, ~d Fiteh~ w~id~
makes Columbia County one of only five co’~’2ies in G~rgia to attain this high bond ratie~g. We
also received the Certificate of Achievement for the seventh consecutive year. These t2~ree
accomplishments are the best verification ~at the County is fiscally responsible, is handling r~id
growth well, and has a vision for the future.

Growth in all facets of Columbia County remains strong ~d attractive to individual families,
retail/commercial, and industry alike. Our two .new golf course/residential communities are
progressing well and will offer a variety of ho~sing tBq3es. The BaY~ram Trail punic golf course
successfully opened this summer. New home construction in the County is continuing with single
family homes beginning at $~80,G(19. Area homehui~ders continue to make application for
subdivision plats and building permits in ~arge numbers. These plats include single family,
townhouse developments, ~d apartment eomp!exes.

The activity level for retai~ and commercial, deve]opment is ongoing with much growth alor~g the
major transportation thoroughfares of Washing::on Road, Betair Road, Interstate 20 intersections, and
Furys Ferry Road. Plans for several ~arge shopping centers have been announced, and a 400,0~0 sq.
ft. retail center- anchored by Target and Koh~s - opened &is year. Across the street ~om this c~ter
will be an upscale retail shopping area anchored by a ~arge sporting goods store. P~ans for ti~e 50.~
acre Marshail Square include retail and pro~%ssionai, a hotel ea:d convention center, and resider, tial
housing across from the Ev~s Government and Justice Centers in the heart of the Evans Town
Center. Another retai~ center has been a~mo’~ced that wit1 be ~oeated on the Evans Middle Sc~oo?
site once a new middle school has been comp!eted. "These curators represent 1.5 miltion square feet
of retail space that will be available over the ae×t few years. It is obvious that the retail market is
following the population flow into the County and is attracted to the County’s demographics.



A significant medical corridor is developing on Belair Road. The area’s largest OB/GYN practice
will be moving from downtown Augusta to across the street from the University Hospital medical
facility. It will include a wellness center, clothing stores, and restaurants. This area’s medical
personnel enjoy working close to their patients and their own homes. The area hospitals have also
invested in the community by providing two free outdoor concerts by the Augusta Symphony and the
Augusta Opera, which thousands attended.

/

The County’s newest public/private partnership industrial park, Horizon North, has two tenants who
are suppliers for John Deere located in the nearby Horizon South Industrial Park. Public/private
partnerships have been most successful, and the concept is being encouraged throughout the County.
The Horizon South Industrial Park, which had almost reached full capacity, has obtained additional
property and will soon be home to a satellite campus of Augusta Tech. The Development Authority
announced this summer their plans to build a spec building as well as a "pad-ready" site in the near
future in one of the industrial parks.

In an effort to encourage economic opportunities and growth around the beautiful Lake Thurmond,
the Clarks Hill Partnership of Georgia was established in the fall of 2005. This dynamic partnership
is composed of Columbia, Lincoln, McDuffie, Washington, and Wilkes Counties and will open
opportunities for grants and increased tourism. Immediate projects include the expansion of the
McDuffie Airport and the Regional Business Retention and Expansion Program as well as tourism.

All efforts are focused on better customer service and cost-efficiency as we start to view ourselves
from a business perspective. The County’s continued growth and high quality of life are bringing in
citizens from all walks of life and from all areas of the world - a welcome diversity. The Board of
Commission is dedicated to providing a streamline and fiscally responsible government as we
anticipate a robust future.

MAJOR CURRENT YEAR INITIATIVES

Fire Services. In December 2003, the Board of Commission voted to use property tax funds to
provide fire services in the unincorporated area of the County. This has eliminated subscription
fees and under-funding of several fire departments. As of January 1, 2006, 24/7 fire services will
be provided by one fire department with a small area of the County having service provided on a
"pay-per-call" basis by a city fire department. The public has been very supportive of this
endeavor as service has greatly improved.

Internal Services. Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)was introduced, and all County departments
have been evaluating their processes to determine how they can provide services more efficiently as
the County changes its focus from the typical government perspective to functioning as a business.
ERP will provide upgraded computer equipment and soRware to meet these goals. The start-up for
this project will be in 2006 and will be phased in by departments.
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~ecze~JP~zl~. h the early spring, the Cou~ ~ "~ "~ ~~os~ ~s firs° CZTG©/BASSMaster tournament
at Wildwood Park. This new venue -for the ESPN tournament was a great success. Wildwood Park
is now the destination for fishing tournaments every weekend for many months and has increased the
use of this 975-acre park overall. The Nationa: Disc Go’XAssociation will be housed at Wildwood
Park and national archery tournaments are p!a~-~zed for 2005. P:~ase .~ of both the Blanchard Woods
Master P~an and the Reed Creek Master Plan have been completed.

~$eZo The Water and Sewer Division continues to pe~om~ well ~d i~ad its bond rating improved
to AA-. In October 2004, the County issued $28~640,900 Cok:~f~ia County, GA, Water and
Sewerage ~evenue Bonds for the purpose of improving ~e water and sewer system. The ~owfiq of
the County wiil follow its progress. The Water D~vis’on completed a 10-year capital improvements
plan for water and sewer expansion and constructed a large d~ameter water main to the HaWaii Farm
Road tanks. This strategic planning has ensured that an ample water supply is available at all times.

3o2.~2. An officiat 3olol call center was initiated ,~ 2005 and provides 24/7 assistance with non--
emergency and informationa~ calls. This has a~eviated ea!~s to the County’s emergency 9-1-t center
and has created a centralized source of County info~ation wh~e ~mplaiNs are tracked u~ti~
completion.

2% SwecMI P~zf~se L~c~g O~g~e~ S~ges~ T~ (S]?LOST).- 2~-2~5. The "star" project of the
current SPLOST is the County’s new public library and performing arts center. The building is near
completion and a grand opening is plarmed for April 2005. This building atong with the 700..seat
amphitheatre and lighted mile walking track wiIi l~e the site for many community activities. The
County built a read into the r~ew 150-acre BIanci:ard Weeds Park which will provide six additional
soccer fields, tennis courts, and walking traits. Transpor’~afioa projects are continuing as fih~_ding
becomes available, and the continuation of the center t~m ~.ane on Washington Road has been a great
asset.

2 % ~ecg~g x~Feze Lec~g @~ge~ ~ge~ T~ (S]?£C~- 2~6 J~2~. Because of several impo~ant
initiatives, the County passed its 2006-20 i 0 SPL©ST referendum in 2ully 2004 so genera~ oh~igafion
bonds could be so~d. These funds have been earmarked for four new fire stations and equipm~nL
emergency operations center, improvements to tb~’ee recreational parks, and renovations and
improvements to several County buildings.

2~e~J~r,a/C~z~ggd~r~o The Board ef Co:~missioners feels that this is a unique time to
accomplish one of its most importer projects - to erasure ~e government of Columbia Cou:.ty witl
be streamlined and able to profit from opport-aaYdes allowed by State iaw for consol.idated
governments. Unlike many Georgia Counties which have a municipal government providing urhan
services to a large portion of the county’s population, ~’~e Columbia County government is the major
service provider in our County. Since more fiaan 90% of the County’s population is in the
unincorporated area outside the city limits of both Grovetown and Harlem, the vast majo~ty of all
I~oca~ governmental services are provided by the County government. It is hoped ~.at the



incorporation/consolidation concept be on the ballot in 2006 so the citizens can decide on this
important issue.

Transportation. The Georgia DOT has been cooperative in recognizing our rapid growth and its
impact on the County’s major transportation corridors. DOT funding must be combined with
SPLOST funds to accomplish needed improvements. The DOT is currently widening Fury Ferry’s
Road, and once completed, it will greatly alleviate traffic congestion on other main traffic arteries.

Road widening, sidewalks, and street lamps have been installed on Ronald Reagan Drive where
further intersection improvements are planned, with a traffic signal at North Belair Road to be
installed in early 2006. The widening of North Belair Road and initial work on a connector road
linking North Belair and Industrial Drive has begun.

Growth Management Plan. The State of Georgia requires its counties to write a revised Growth
Management Plan every ten years. Because of the rapid growth in Columbia County, a new plan is
currently being prepared after only five years. The updating of this plan involves a citizen
committee, public meetings, and a great deal of research and decision-making on the zoning of the
county. Zoning determines where all types of growth will go as well as where greenspace and
recreational facilities will be located. These decisions will have a profound impact on the future
quality of life in the County. A final report from this committee is expected in early 2006.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the County are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and
to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control process
is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The
concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the
benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management.

As part of the County’s annual single audit, required in conformity with provisions of the U.S. Office
of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal control structure including
that portion relating to federal financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the County
has complied with applicable laws and regulations. The single audit for the year ended June 30,
2005, disclosed no material internal control weaknesses or material violations of laws and
regulations.



The County is required to adopt a balanced budget each year and maintain budgetary consols to
ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in ~e annua~ appropriated budget approved by
the Board of Commissioners. Activities of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, ~d Debt
Service Fund are included in the annual appropriated budget. Proje~t..iength plans are adopted .for
the Capital Projects Funds. The level of budgetary contro~ (i.e, the :evel at which experA’X-~res
cannot legally exceed appropriations} is the depar’anenta~ level wi~in each f~nd. The Fk~a~zce
Director may authorize transfers of appropriations within departments (except salary line ~tems) that
are < $5,000. The County Administrator may authorize transfers of appropriations within
departments (except salary line items} that are $5,000 or more. Transfers of appropriations from ore
department to another or from one f-und to another require approval of the Board of Co~issioaers.

The County maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomp[isking
budgetary control. Encumbered amounts ~apse at year-end. However, outstanding enev.m’:~ranees
generally are re-appropriated as part of the following year’s budget. A detailed explanatior~ of the
County’s budget procedures can be found in the notes to the financia~ statements.

Columbia County continues to maintain strong bo~d ratings with the major credit rating services. ~
September 2004, the County prepared comprehensive presentations for ]Pitch IBCA, Stan&,~d &
Pools, and Moody’s hvestors Service rating agencies in ~ effort to upgrade the cu~e~,2 zai:~s~red
ratings applied to the Count~c’s general obligation bonds and water and sewerage revenue ~onds.
Noting increased financia~ flexibility due to s~or~5 reserves, ’a, he County’s strong tax base grov~:h a~d
its consistently strong financial operations, tF,,e County received notification from Fitch 13CA zmd
Standard & Poor’s that the County’s general obligatioz bonds ratings were upgraded from AA-. to
AA. Moody’s maintained the rating of Aa3 on the general obligation bond issues. Standard &
Poor’s upgraded its rating on the water and sewerage bonds from A to AA-, whiD ?itch and
Moody’s maintained their ratings of AA~- and Aa3, respectively. The Coun~ will co~2inue to foliow
prudent fiscal policies and practices in order to maintain its strong credit rating.

While any finvestment instrument or decision carries certain elements of risk, numerous safeguards
are available to minimize the risk white generating a market rate of return. Columbia County seeks
to obtain market rates of return on its investments consistent with constraints imposed by its safety
objectives, cash flow considerations, a~d Georgia state ~aws. Safety of principal is the fe:remost
objective. Each investment transaction shait first seek to ensure that capital ~osses are avoided,
whether they are from defaults or erosion of market vatue.
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Idle funds are invested primarily in obligations of the State of Georgia and other states; obligations
issued, fully insured, or guaranteed by the United States; eollateralized certificates of deposit; and
repurchase agreements. The County strives to maximize investment income while minimizing risk
and maintaining liquidity sufficient to cover cash operating requirements. The County utilizes
various forms of investment instruments to avoid incurring unreasonable risks inherent in the lack of
diversification in specific instruments, individual financial institutions, or maturities. Investment
maturities are scheduled to coincide with projected cash flow needs, taking into account large routine
scheduled expenditures, as well as considering unanticipated revenues and expenditures.

Investment income includes appreciation in the fair value of investments. Increases in fair value
during the current year, however, do not necessarily represent trends that will continue; nor is it
always possible to realize such amounts, especially in the case of temporary changes in the fair value
of investments that the government intends to hold to maturity.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The purpose of the Columbia County risk management program is to minimize the financial burden
incurred by the County as a result of work-related injuries, loss of County property, and damages
which may be incurred by third parties. The County has elected to utilize coverages provided by the
Association County Commissioners of Georgia Interlocal Risk Management Agency (ACCG-/RMA)
and the Association County Commissioners of Georgia Group Self-insured Workers’ Compensation
Fund (ACCG-GSIWCF). The County continues to maintain self-insured retention levels of $50,000
per occurrence and $200,000 per occurrence in the ACCG-IRMA and ACCG-GSIWCF programs,
respectively. An Internal Service Fund is used to account for costs associated with risk management,
with the exception of workers’ compensation, which continues to be accounted for within the
General Fund. Reserves are being accumulated in both funds to meet potential losses. As reserves
increase, retention levels may be increased, reducing the annual cost of coverage.

Management remains committed to a safe working environment. Employee education and training
enhance and supplement ongoing efforts to maintain a safe and healthy environment for all County
employees. Training classes, such as CPR and first aid, defensive driving, self defense, workplace
violence, and office ergonomics, are made available for all County employees.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The Code of Ordinances of Columbia County and the Official Code of Georgia require an annual
independent audit of the County’s financial records by a certified public accounting finn. The
accounting firm of Baird & Company CPAs, LLC, was selected by the Management and Financial
Services Committee and approved by the Board of Commissioners in April 2004 as independent
auditor for fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, with an option to renew the contract for three additional
one year periods. This option was exercised for fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. In addition to
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meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the
requirements of the U.S. Office of Management and Budgefs Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. The auditor’s report on the basic financial statements is
included in the financial section of this report. Tl,,e auditor’s reports on internal controls and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations are included in the single audit section of this
report.

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awar:led 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in ~’inaaciat Reporting to Columbia County, Georg/a, for
its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. 7his was the
seventh consecutive year that the County achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarSed a
Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently orga:aized
comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicaNe legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year onIly. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the support and cooperation
of elected officials, County administration, other County departments, external auditors, arr.d the
efficient, dedicated efforts of the entire staff of the Finance Department. Credit must be given to the
County Administrator and the Board of Commissioners for their unfailing support for maintaining
the highest standards of professionalism in the management of Columbia County’s finances.

Respectfully submitted,

Leanne C. DeLoach, C~A
Director of Financial Services
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~DEPENDENT A~T©RS~ RF_,~©RT

To the Board of Commissioners
Columbia County, Georgia
Evans, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund and aggregate remaining fund
information of Columbia County, Georgia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, which collectively
comprise Columbia County’s basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of Columbia County, Georgia’s management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the discretely presented component units, the
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Columbia
County, Georgia, as of June 30, 2005, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the general fund for the year then ended, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 8, 2005,
on our consideration of Columbia County, Georgia’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an "
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.
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To the Board of Commissioners
Columbia County, Georgia
Page 2

Management’s discussion and analysis is not a required part of the basic fmancial statements but is
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Columbia County, Georgia, basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical tables are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule
of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office
of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of Columbia County,
Georgia. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated-in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on them

BAIRD & COMPANY, CPAS, LLC
Certified Public Accountants

December 8, 2005
Augusta, Georgia
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

The Management’S Discussion and Analysis of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 

Columbia County, Georgia (the Government) provides an overall narrative and analysis of the

Government’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. This discussion and analysis is

designed to look at the Government’s financial performance as a whole. Readers should also review the
additional information provided in the transmittal letter, which can be found preceding this narrative, and

the complete financial statements, with notes, which follow this narrative, to enhance their understanding of

the Government’s financial performance.

Financial Highlights

Key f’mancial highlights of the Primary Government for the year ended June 30, 2005, are as follows:

* The Government’s combined net assets totaled $250.3 million.

The Government’s total net assets increased by $27.7 million, primarily due to increased revenue
from property taxes of $5 million, Sales taxes of $1.4 million, and capital grants/contributions of

$9.2 million.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Government’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $63.8 million, an increase of $i9.5 million from the prior year.

Approximately 90% of this total amount, or $57.2 million, is available for spending at the

government’s discretion (unreserved fund balance).

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $14.9

million, or 36.5% of total General Fund expenditures for the fiscal year. Of this amount, $11.9

million has been designated for other purposes, leaving $3 million, or 7.3% of total General Fund

expenditures, as undesignated.

¯ Combined Revenue totaled $112.6 million of which governmental activities totaled $75.0 million
and business-type activities totaled $37.6 million.

¯ Overall expenses totaled $84.8 million of which governmental activities totaled $60.3 million and
business-type activities totaled $24.5 million.

¯ Expenses of governmental activities exceeded program revenue, resulting in the use of $42.8

million in general revenues (mostly taxes).

Total Outstanding Long-Term Debt, excluding compensated absences and the liability for landfill

closure/post closure care costs, increased approximately $47.2 million primarily due to the
issuance of $22.750 million of general obligation bonds and $28.940 million of revenue bonds.

16



This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an Lutroduction to the Government’s basic financial
statements. The basic financial statements consist of three components: i) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The basic financial
statements present two different views of the Government through the use of government-wide statements
and fund fmancial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other
supplemental information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of the
Government.

I
Management’s
Discussion and

Analysis

I
I

Government-
Wide Financial

Statements

F~g~re

I
Basic

Financial
Statements

Fund
Financial

Statements

Notes to the
Financial

Statements

Summary ~ Detail

~a~¢ F~mam~a~ $~a~e~mem%

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the G®vez=meat-.wt~e F[~a=c[a~ $ta~e~e~s.~ "
They provide both short and long-term information about the Government’s financial status.

The next statements are Fma~ F~e~a~ $tateme~tz. These statements focus on the activities of the
individual parts of C’olumbia County, Georgia’s government. These statements provide more detail the, the
government-wide statements. There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental
funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund statements; and 4) 
fiduciary fund statements.

The next section of the basic flmancial statements is the ~e~e~. The notes to the financial statements explain
in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, ~pr~e~ze~a~ ~ffer~a~cx is
provided to show details about the Government’s non-major governmental funds and internal service fimds,
all of which are added together in one column on the appropriate basic financial statements.
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Government-wide Financial Statements

The Government-wide financial statements provide a broad view of the Government’s operations in a
manner similar to a private-sector business. The statements provide both short-term and long-term

information about the Government’s financial position, which assists in assessing the economic condition

at the end of. the fiscal year. These statements are prepared using the flow of economic resources

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This means the statements take into account all

revenues and expenses connected with the fiscal year even if cash involved has not been received or paid.

The government-wide financial statements include the following two statements:

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Government’s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may

serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Government is improving or

deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Government’s net assets changed

during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event

giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and

expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will not result in cash flows until future fiscal

periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). This statement also presents 

comparison between direct expense and program revenues for each function of the Government.

The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities, 2) business-
type activities and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most of the Government’s basic

services such as general administration, judicial services, public safety, public works, health and welfare,

culture and recreation, and housing and development. Property taxes, local option sales taxes and state and

federal grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those services that the
Government charges a fee to customers in order to provide. These include solid waste management, water

and sewer, and storm water. The final category is component units. The Development Authority of

Columbia County serves to promote, pursue and implement economic development in the County. The

Columbia County Board of Health is a public health department. The Bartram Trail, CDC, Inc. is a

community development corporation created to develop, construct, and operate a public golf course in
Columbia County. Although legally separate from the Government, the Government appoints a voting

majority of the boards for the Development Authority, the Board of Health, and the Bar/ram Trail, CDC,

Inc.

Fund Financial Statements

A Fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been

segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Government, like other state and local governments,

uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

The fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the Government, reporting the Government’s

operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. All of the fimds of the Government can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. These fund

categories use different accounting approaches and should be interpreted differently.
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Governmental Funds

Most of the basic services provided by the Government are financed through governmental funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governn~,.ent

activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide statements,

these funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash and the amount of funds left at year-end

that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting

method called modified accrual accounting, which focuses on current financial resources. Such information

may be useful ha evaluating the government’s short-term f~nancing requkements. These statements provide
a detailed short-term view of the Government’s fma~nces that assists in determining whether "there will be

adequate financial resources available to meet "txe Governnaent’s current needs. The relationship between

government activities ha the government-wide financial statements and the governmental fimds ftuaneial

statements is described ha a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.

The Government has four governmental fund types: the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt
Service Funds and the Capital Projects Funds. Only three individual funds are being considered major

funds - the General Fund, the 2001-2005 Special Furpose Local Option Sales Tax Fund (SPLOST) and the

2004 General Obligation Bond Fund.

Proprietary Funds

The Government has two t3~pes of proprietary funds used to account for activities that operate similar to

commercial enterprises found in the private sector. Funds that charge fees for sek-vices provided to outside
customers including other local governments are known as Enterprise Funds. These funds are used to

report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Funds that charge fees for services provided to depariments within the reporting government are known as

Internal Service Funds. Proprietary funds use the accrual basis of accounting, thus the only reconciling

items needed between the government-wide financial statements for business-type activities and the

proprietary fund financial statements relate to "the elhuination of internal service fired activity and haterfi~nd

indirect cost allocations.

The Government has four enterprise funds: Water and Sewerage Fund, Solid Waste AuthoriW Fund, $ohd
Waste Management Fund and the Storm Water Utility Fund. The Government has three internal service

funds: Employee Medical Fund, Risk Management Fund and Customer Service Information Center. The

Water and Sewerage Fund, Solid Waste Authority Fund and Storm Water Utility Fund are the only funds

being considered major funds for’presentation purposes.

Fiduciary Funds

The Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the Government as an agent for individ’~als,

private organizations, other governments and other Columbia County departments. The Government is

responsible for ensuring that the assets reported ha these funds are used only for their intended purposes and

only by those to whom the assets belong. "Fhese funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial

statements because the resources are not available to support the Government’s operations or programs.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis

Net Assets
Net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial condition.

the Government exceeded liabilities by $250.3 million as of June 30, 2005.

The assets of

The largest portion of the Government’s net assets, $188.6 million or 75%, reflects its investment in capital

assets such as land, buildings, equipment and infrastructure (road, bridges, sidewalks, water lines and sewer

lines) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Government uses these

capital assets to provide services to its citizens; therefore, these assets are not available for future spending.

Although the Government’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be

noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital

assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Government’s net assets, $10.4 million or 4%, represents resources that are

subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets,

$51.3 million or 21%, may be used to meet the Government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

Several particular aspects of the Government’s financial operations positively influenced the total
unrestricted governmental net assets:

¯ Continued diligence in the collection of property taxes by maintaining a collection percentage
of 99% for real and personal property.

¯ Continued low cost of debt due to the County’s high bond rating.
¯ Continued diligence in the maintenance of a 75 - 90 day (25% of operating expenditures)

unreserved fund balance designated for operations in the General Fund.

Current and other assets
Capital assets

Total assets

The Government’s Net Assets
June 30
Figure 2

Long-term liabilities outstanding
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net

of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Governmental
Activities

200_._~5 2004
$ 66,113,997 $ 47,662,711

129,166,401 108,647,331
195,280,398 156,310,042

53,026_,012 28,732,940
4,629,844 4,620,888

57,655,856 33,353,828

Business-type
Activities Total

2005 o.LQ_Q~ 2005 200...__~4
$ 60,347,493 $36,226,952 $126,461,490 $ 83,889,663

146,079,785 136,153,844 $275,246,186 $ 244,801,175
206,427,278 172~380,796 $401,707,676 $ 328,690,838

92,087,830 68,297,681 $145,113,842 $ 97,030,621
1,626,097 4,440,404 $ 6,255,941 $ 9,061,292

93,713,927 721738,085 $151,369,783 $106,091,913

96,090,012 81,177,331
2,249,183 848,444

39,285,347 40,930,439
$ 137,624,542 $122,956,214

92,477,458 79,637,692 $188,567,470 $160,815,023
8,175,423 7,134,148 $ 10,424,606 $ 7,982,592

12,060,470 12,870,871 $ 51,345,817 $ 53,801,310
$112,713,351 $99,642,711 $250,337,893 $ 222,598,925
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Gevez~enta~ Activities. Governmental activities me:eased the Government’s net assets by $14.7 n~llion,
thereby accounting for 53% of the total growth in the net assets of the Government. Key elements of this
increase me as follows:

G®vezn~en~aB ~evenue~° Property tax and sales/other taxes continue as the main source cf
revenue for governmental activities of the Prfin~y Government amounting to 74% of tdtzl
governmental revenues for the year ended ~une 30, 2005. h~creases in proper~y tax and sales .tax
revenues contributed approxim_~tely $5 r~llien end $~.4 rn~llion, respectively, to the ir.c~e~sc i:a
net assets due to growth ~ the County, not increases in ~x zates. Also, capital
grants/con~butions increased by $2.6 rniUJon due to additional grant proceeds of $2.9 n~llion.

G®ver~E®~a~ ~’u~e~ra~ E~en~e~: As reflected in the summ~ of Changes in Net Assets, t~.e
Government expended 49% of the govemmenta~ appropriat~0ns for judicial ~nd public safe~2¢
expenditures, which is comparable to the 46% expended in the prior year. Thus, the Government
continues to commit substantial financial resources for the safety of its citizens.

]~u~nee~o~j~ ae~vi~®~: Businessotype activities increased the Government’s net assets by approxirn~te~.y
$13.1 million, accounting for 47% of the total growth in the government’s net assets. Key elements of this
~crease are as follows:

The Water and Sewerage Fund reposed an ~nerease in net assets of $8.1 million due tz
continued operating efficiency of the fund. Although the demand for water was lower than in
previous years due to an unseaso~bly wet ~ura.mer, management was able to centra~
operating costs in connection wi’ch es/~b~ishing rates sufficient to ensure an increase in ~et
assets.

The Solid Waste Authority Fund reported an i~ucrease in net assets of $224,627. This increase
was due to a minimal change in the filled capacity ef the landfill D cell from 93% as of Jttae
30, 2004, to 97% as of June 30, 2005. This increased the ~iability for closure and postclostrze
care costs of the D cell by only $689,795 as of 2u.~e 30, 2005.

The Storm W~ter Utility Fund reported an ~crease in net assets of $4.4 in,Ilion due to capital
contributions of $4.3 million.



Revenue-

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General revenues:
Property taxes
Sales/other taxes
Revenues from use of money
Gain on sale of assets
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenses:

General government
Judicial system
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Homing and development
Interest on long-term debt
Water and sewer
Storm water
Solid waste management
Solid waste authority

Total expenses

Increase in net assets before transfers

Transfers

Increase in net assets

Net assets, July 1

Prior period adjustment

Net assets, June 30

The Government’s Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30

Figure 3
Govemn~ntal Business-type

Activities Activities Total

200___55 2~ 200__~5 2004 200____55 2004

9,277,237$ 8,908,132
1,694,385 2,810,736
6,472,067 3,911,264

24,290,609 19,171,747
31,430,996 29,945,007
1,153,993 503,308

74,165 277,940
539,654 368,753

26,511,861 $ 24,416,995
8,545

10,756,868 4,123,601

324,624 294,417

16,350 9,425
37,618,248 28,844,43874,933,106 65,896,887

10,952,376 10,690,148
3,921,382 3,079,123

25,604,875 21,614,362
9,791,907 9,943,098
1,589,011 1,552,310
3,518,904 3,239,469
2,998,369 2,482,975
1,906,954 1,396,991

60,283,778 53,998,476

14,649,328 11,898,411

19,000

14,668,328 11,898,411

122,956,214 111,057,803

16,439,761 15,639,176
1,945,086 1,508,994
4,728,988 4,090,072
1,414,773 1,236,723

24,528,608 22,474,965

13,089,640 6,369,473

(19,000}

13,070,640 6,369,473

99,642,711 94,334,137

- (1,060,899)

$ 125,783,991 $ 106,012,184

35,789,098$ 33,325,127
1,702,930 2,810,736

17,228,935 8,034,865

$ 152,292,870 $ 134,854,625

24,290,609 19,171,747
31,430,996 29,945,007
1,478,617 797,725

74,165 277,940
556,004 378,178

112,551,354 94,741,325

10,952,376 10,690,148
3,921,382 3,079,123

25,604,875 21,614,362
9,791,907 9,943,098
1,589,011 1,552,310
3,518,904 3,239,469
2,998,369 2,482,975
1,906,954 1,396,991

16,439,761 15,639,176
1,945,086 1,508,994
4,728,988 4,090,072
1,414,773 1,236,723

84,812,386 76,473,441

27,738,968 18,267,884

27,738,968 18,267,884

222,598,925 205,391,940

(1,060,899)

$ 278,076,861 $ 240,866,809
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Individual Funds

Columbia County uses fund accounting to demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds
The focus of the Government’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,

outflows and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Government’s

financial requirements. In particular, the unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a

government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. The combined fund balance
of all the governmental funds is $63.8 million, of which $57.2 million, or 90%, is unreserved.

General Fund
The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Government. At the end of the current fiscal year,

total fund balance of the General Fund was $15.4 million, of which $14.9 million, or 96%, was unreserved.

A portion of the unreserved fund balance in the General Fund is designated for operations and
extraordinary losses, in the amounts of $10.9 million and $1 million, respectively, as required by financial

management policies of the Government. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to

compare both undesignated and designated fund balance to total fund expenditures. As of June 30, 2005,

total unreserved fund balance, both undesignated and designated, represents 37% of total general fund

expenditures.

The total fund balance of the General Fund decreased by $1.2 million (7%) during the current fiscal year

due to a transfer out of undesignated fund balance in the amount of $2.1 million to provide support for the
first year of operations in the Fire Services Fund, a nonmajor Special Revenue Fund. However, fund

balance designated for operations still exceeds the goal of 25% of operating expenditures. Other key

factors contributing to this change are as follows:
¯ Total revenue exceeded prior year revenue by $2.7 million, or 7%, primarily due to the increase of

$1.4 million in taxes. This increase includes additional sales tax revenues of $676,004 and
additional property taxes of $1.0 million.

Although expenditures increased in fiscal year 2005 by $3.3 million, or 9%, revenues exceeded
expenditures by $685,830.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
During the year ended June 30, 2005, the Government’s financial picture remains impressive. The fiscal

year 2005 budget was balanced with no millage rate increase and no reduction in services provided to the

citizens.

During the year, the Government revised the budget on several occasions. Generally, budget amendments

fall into one of five categories: 1) amendments to appropriate fund balance for encumbrances from the prior

year; 2) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget resolution

once exact information is available; 3) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external
sources, such as Federal and State grants; 4) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain

services; and 5) amendments to transfer appropriations between departments. The fifth category has no
effect on the final budget and, therefore, is not addressed in this narrative. For example, included in the

original budget for the general government function was a contingency in the amount of $609,945. During
the year, the Government transferred these funds to other functions as needed, but this had no impact on the

total budget.
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Amendments to the General Fund budget increased revenues by $2.6 million, expenditures by $0.5 million,
and other financing sources/(uses) by $2.1 million and consisted of the following:

o $523,287 increase in grant revenues to fund various programs;
o A transfer out of undesignated fund balance of $2,109,407 to provide support to the Fire

Services Fund for its first year of operations;
o $19,000 transferred from Solid Waste iV~anagement Fund to help support the Clean and

Beautiful program.

The actual operating revenues for the General Fund were less than the budgeted amount by $1.7 million
due to money budgeted from fund balance to be used for capital expenditures and interfund transfers. The
individual sources within the revenues fluctuated both positively and negatively. Except for the ott;er
category that included budgeted fund balance, no individual source materially varied from the final budget.
In order to balance revenues with expenditures, the Govern~ent budgeted as a revenue $3.4 million of
undesignated fund balance to be used for capital expenditxires and a transfer to the Fire Services Fund. If
budgeted fund balance is excluded from the computation, actual revenues exceeded budgeted revenues by
$1.7 million.

As a result of superior budget management by all departments of the Government, actual operating
expenditures were less than the budgeted amount by $650,332. For the year, actual expenditures and other
financing uses exceeded actual revenues and other f’mancing sources by $1.2 million.

The Government uses Capital Projects Funds to account for the acquisition and construction of major

capital facilities that are not financed by Proprietary Funds. Two major funds included in the fund financial

statements are the 2001-2005 SPLOST Fund and the 2004 General Obligation Bond Fund. The proceeds of
the special purpose I% sales tax and the 2004 general obligation bond issue are accounted for in .these

capital projects funds until improvement projects are completed. The fund balances as of June 30, 2005,

for the SPLOST Fund and the Bond Fund total $20.7 million and $17.2 million, respectively, all of which
is held for specific construction and improvement projects and capital acquisitions. The increase in fund

balances in the SPLOST Fund and Bond Fund is due to the timing of the collection of revenues as

compared to project expenditures.

The activities of the Government that render services to the general public on a user charge basis, or that

require periodic determination of revenues for public policy, are accounted for as Enterprise Funds. The

Government’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net assets at the end of the year were as follows: Water and

Sewerage Fund, $11.4 million; Solid Waste Authority Fund, $(1.6 million); Storm Water Utility Fund, $1.6

million. The total growth (reduction) in net assets for previously mentioned funds was $8.1 millian,

$224,627, and $4.4 million, respectively. Factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been
addressed in the discussion of the Government’s business-type activities.

The Government’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June
30, 2005, amounts to $275.2 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets

includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, infrastructure and construction in progress.
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Infrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and of value only to the Government, such as

roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and other similar items.

Major capital asset transactions during the year include:
¯ Completion of $8.2 million of infrastructure and other public works projects.
¯ Addition of water and sewer systems of $14 million and storm water systems of $4.8 million.

¯ Increase in construction in process for governmental activities of $7.3 million.

Additional information on the Government’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 of the notes to the

financial statements of this report.

The Government’s Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

June 30

Figure 4

Gov~mmtal Business-type

Activities Activities Total

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2o04
land $ 28,217,656 $ 25,943,275 $ 1,470,680 $ 1,425,680 $ 29,678,336 $ 27,368,955

Buildings 43,069,914 43,399,861 1,021,737 1,072,482 44,091,651 44,472,343

lrrpmvenents other than buildings 6,298,050 2,407,065 395,145 952,533 6,693,195 3,359,598

Utility plant md distribution systerrs - 68,433,847 63,062,442 68,433,847 63,062,442

Donated subdivision - 38,258,649 . 33,650,416 38,258,649 33,650,416

Storm water ~tetm - 8,502,533 4,330,808 8,502;533 4,330,808

29,102,973 24,186,101 29,102,973 24,186,101

Vehicles, rmchin~y and equilm~ 5,361,219 2,881,592 1,529,386 2,018,090 6,890,605 4,899,682

Constntcfion in progress 17,126,589 9,829,437 26,467,808 29,641,392 43,594,397 39,470,829
Total $129,166,401$108,647,331$146,079,785 $136,153,843 $275,246,186$244,801,174

Long-Term Debt

As of June 30, 2005, the Government had a total of $145 million in outstanding long-term debt. Of this

amount, $51.5 million consists of general obligation debt backed by the full faith and credit of the
government, $79.5 million consists of revenue bonds backed by the revenues of the water and sewer system

and the landfill, $10.8 million consists of the liability for landfill closure, and $3.4 million in other

liabilities. The Government retired $7.7 million of outstanding bonds during the year ended June 30, 2005,

and issued $22.75 million of general obligation bonds and $28.94 million of water and sewer revenue

bonds.
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c~ B~si~ss-ty~
A~tiviiies Activities Total

$ 51,573,383 $ 27,470,6’80 $ $ $ 51,573,383 $ 27,470,&~
79,254,336 55,885,405 79,254,336 55,885,405

1,452,629 l,~,gfi0= .... 12,833,494 12,412,278 14,286,123 .~ 13,675,218
$ 53,026,012 $ 28,732,940 $ 92,087,830 $ 68,297,683$ 145,ll3,842 $ 97,030~623

D~qO00i¢~

8O

70
6O

50
40
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...... -2’ ........ i
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~n September 2004, the Government made preser~taSons to the bo~d rating agencies in New York ~:n
prepar~fiort for the issuance of general obEgaEon a:6 water and sewerage revenue bonds. ~’~e Goverarae.n~
has rnah~tained a bond rating of Aa3 ~rora ~oo~y’s ~vestor Services fo~ beth the genera~ ebligat~on az~
water and sewerage debt. Standard and I?oor’s ~:p&-aded ~e genera~ obliga~o~ debt from AA- to AA a~d
the water and sewerage debt from A to AA-. Fitch upgraded the general obligation debt from AA- to AA
and maintained the water and sewerage debt at AA-. ~’I~ese bond ratings are clear indications of fine so:axd
filzanc~a! condition of the Government. %hese ~igh rat~gs are a primary factor in keeping interest costs low
on the Governlnent’s outstanding debt.

The State of Georgia limits the amount of geaeraI obligation debt @x., a unit of goverrunaent can iss=e t~ 10
percent of the total assessed value of taxable property ~oca~ed witk~n that government’s boundaries. The

~Aa~].O22,legal debt margin for the Covemment ~s $24~ "~’ "

Additional information regarding the Governrner~t’s ~ong-term debt can be found ha Note 7 of the notes to
the financial statements of tl~s report.
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Economic Factors

The Board of Commissioners (BOC) have continued to aggressively address the current and future needs 

the Government by focusing on sound financial management, the reserve policy, the use of current

resources for capital expenditures and the development of capital improvement plans. With a growing,

diverse population, the challenge is to continue to improve the quality of life by concentrating on the
demands placed on the public infrastructure such as transportation, water supply, wastewater treatment, the

demands of revitalization of many business areas and the demands of greenspace conservation. Although

the nation and surrounding counties are facing financial difficulties, Columbia County is able to maintain
low property tax rates and low debt levels and has increased the reserves so that we can remain a leader and

provide the best place to live, work and play.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2006

With the rapid growth in the County and a continual desire to improve services, passing a balanced budget

with an adequate contingency without raising the operational millage rate for the eighth consecutive year is

a triumph for the Constitutional Officials, staff, and the citizens of Columbia County! Because of the fiscal

responsibility by the BOC in the past, Columbia County is able to weather tight financial times while
seeking to provide services as cost-effectively as possible.

The County’s goals for 2006 start with the continuation of fiscal responsibility and strategies for needed
long-term projects. Emphasis on the following three areas--initiation of projects funded from the 2006-

2010 SPLOST, revisions to the zoning ordinances reflecting recommendations from the new Growth

Management Plan, and improvements for critically needed infrastructure--wiU be the focal points for the

BOC.

As the County continues to grow, commercial and retail development is "following the housetops," and
over one million square feet of new retail space is either in the planning stage or under construction.

Ensuring that this development will enhance the community financially as well as visually is an important

task. More stringent architectural requirements for all commercial development and higher standards for

growth at major intersections are being developed rapidly. The citizens of Columbia County want and

expect the best of all worlds--a high quality of life, excellent retail buying opportunities, lower taxes than
our neighbors, and first rate appearance.

In 1996, our Sheriff’s Office was the first in the state to receive CALEA’s (Commission on Accreditation
for Law Enforcement Agencies) Sheriff’s Office accreditation which they continue to maintain, and

recently the Sheriff’s 9-1-1 Department was the first in the state to receive CALEA’s Communication
Center accreditation. This rarely-achieved nationwide standard of excellence illustrates the premier

community-focused public safety offered by our Sheriff’s Office.
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Below are additional budget highlights of the General Fund:
o Economic development $ 1,035,512
o 2% Contingency $ 872,806
o 23 new positions in various $ 530,094

County departments and other

promotions and reclassifications
o Merit/benefit increases $ 455,252
o Capitalequipment $ 1,441,920
o Increase from prior year 8.07%

This report is designed to provide an overview of the Government’s finances for those with an interest in

this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional

information should be directed to the Finance Director, Columbia County, Georgia, 630 Ronald Reagan

Drive, Evans, Georgia 30809.
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Ass~s
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Intergovemmental receivable
Internal balances
Inventories
Prepaid items
Deferred charges
Due from component units
Capital assets:

Land and construction in
progress
Other capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation

Restricted assets:
Restricted cash
Restricted havestments

ql"o~ asaets

L~b~es
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest payable
Due to primary government
Customer deposits
Long-term liabilities:

Liabilities due within one
year
Liabilities due in greater
than one year

To~ ~ab~it~es

I~e~ asse~
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt
Restricted for debt service
Urtrestricted

l~us~eZSo

$ 27,877,390$ 8,248,067$ 36,125,457
31,921,845 11,967,637 43,889,482

335,502 335,502
¯ 889,276 3,123.509 4,012.785
4,420,588 - 4,420,588
(111,635) 1 II,635

30,502 577,084 607,586
182,904 31,133 214,037
506,625 3,624,767 4,131,392
61,000 61,000

$ 117,802$ 253,119

34,685

231
- 912,546

45,334,245 27,938,488 73,272,733 477,494

83,832,156 g18,141~297 201,973,453 1,781,967

- 6,62~,361 6,621.361
- 26,042,3~0 26,042,300

7,467,503

L566,407

195,280,398 206,427,278 401,707,676 2,377,494 287,804 9,946,456

2,742,859 1,047,020 3,789,879 13,379 3,374
667,065 65,453 732,518 10

59,058 71,625 130,683
1,160,862 349,203 1,510,065 -

- - 61,000
- 92,796 92,796

180.216

1,680,000 4,942,802 6,622,802 625,000 79,037

51,346,012 87A45,028 ~38,491,040 2,695,0ff0 - 10.207,600
57,655,856 93,713,927 X51,369,783 3,394,379 82,421 10,387,816

96,090,012 92,477,458 ~88,567,470 2,259,468 - -
2,249,183 8A75,423 10,424,6.06

39,285,347 12,060,470 51,345,817 (3~76,346) 205,383 (441,360)
$ 137.624,542$ 112,713,351 $ 250.337,893 $ (1,016,885) $ 205,383 $ (441,360)

The notes to the ffmancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Columbia County, Georgia

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Functions/Programs
Primary government:

Governmental activities:
General government
Judicial system
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation

" Homing and development
Debt service - interest and fees

Total governmental activifie~

Business-type activities:
Wamr and sewer
Storm water
Solid waste management
Solid waste authority

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Component units:
Development Authority of Columbia County.
Columbia County Board of Health
Bartram Trail CDC, Inc.

Total component unit

Expenses

Program Revenues

Charges for
Services

Operating Capital
Grants and Grants and

Contributions Contributions

$ 10,952,376 $
3,921,382

25,604,875
9,791,907
1,589,011
3,518,904
2,998,369
1,906,954

60,283,778

2,143,541
2,708,135
2,229,070

103,360
537,381

1,555,750

$ 371,559 $ 3,277,952
51,043

556,554
480,226 2,984,912
200,331

4,672 209,203
30,000

9,277p237 ..1,694,385 6,472,067

16,439,761 18,246,249
1,945,086 2,170,525
4,728,988 3,476,191
lt414,773

2,618,896.

24,528,608 26~511~861

$ 84,812,386 $

8,545 6,499,686
4,257,182

.8,:545 10,756,868

35,789,098 , $. 1,702,930 $ 17,228,935.

$ 477,690 $ 1,250
1,247,519 148,444

657,262
$ 2,382,471

,, , ,
$ 149,694

$ 955,758 $
1,018,575

- 252,595

, $ 1,974,333 , $ ¯ 252,595

General revenues:
Taxes, property
Taxes, sales
Taxes, franchise
Taxes, other
Revenues from use of money and property
Gain on sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous

Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning
Net assets - ending

The notes to the financial statements are aa integral part of this statement.
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C~

(5,159,324) 
(1,162,204)

(22,819,251)
(6,326,769)
(~,285,32o)
(2,767,648)
(1,412,619)
(1,9o6,954)

(42,840,089)

$ (5,159,324) 
(1,!62,x04)

(22,819,~51)
(6,326,769)
(1,285,320)

° (2,767,648)
o (1,412,619)
- (~,~o6,954) _..
- (42L,840,08.~9)

o $ ° $

o

o

8,314,719 8,3 ! 4,7 X 9 o
4,482,621 4,482,621 o

(1,252,797) (1#52,797).
1,204,123 ..... ~,204,123 o

12,748,666 12,748,666 -

12,748,666 (30,091,623) o(42,840,089)

$

$

$ $ 479,318 $ $
(80,500) -

. . 1404,667)
$ $ 479,318 $ (80,500) (4 04,667)

24,290,609
24,345,520

489,564
6,595,912
1,153,993

74,165
539,654

1%000
57,508,417

324,624

16,350
(19,000)
321,974

24,290,609
24,345,520 o

489,564 °
6,595,912
!~78,617 6,461 3,363

74,165
556,004 ° 35,007

49,942

57,830,391 6,461 38,370 49,942

14,668,328 13,070,640 27,738,968 485,779 (42,130) (354,725)

122,956,214 99,642,711 222,598,925 _._....~1,502,664)
137,624,542, $ 112,713,351 "-ff250,337,89~ $ (~,016,885) $

247,513.....205,383~.ff._____~360_~
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Columbia County, Georgia

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2005

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
IntergoVea’nmental receivable
Due from component units
Due from other funds
Inventories
Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued compensated absences
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds
Accrued imerest

Total liabilities

General

Special 2004
Local Option General Other

Sales Tax Fund Obligation Governmental
2001-2005 Bond Fund Funds

$ 7,892,893 $ 13,587;499. $ 419,946 $ 5,442,221
9,040,321 6,056,564 16,723,665 101,295

281,551 - 53,951
148,875 19,814 704,732

2,052,358 2,368,230 -
- 61,000

2,899,462 46,930 5,388,540
30,502 -

158,095 11,469 107 12,916
$ 22,504,05"/ $ 22,104,576$ 17,190,648$ ll,703,655

$ 818,300 $ 1,164;639$ " 25,451 $ 418,281
376,339 6,273 1,002 32,311
159,566 1,506 15,967
244,884 - 105,842

5,464,248 249,373 619,740
- 24,433

Total
¯ Governmental

Funds

$ 27,342,559
31,921,845

335,502
873,421

4,420,588
61,000

8,334,932
30,502

182,587
$ 73,502,936

$ 2,426,671
415,925
177,039
350,726,

6,333,361
24,433

7,063,337 1,421,791 26,453 1,216,574 9,728,155

Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for inventories/prepaid items
Reserved for debt service
Unreserved, designated for operations
Unreserved, designated for extraordinary

reserve

Unreserved, undesignated
Uarescrved, reported in nonmajor:

Special revenue
Capitalprojects
¯ Total fund balances

392,06"I 2,613,296
188,596 11,469

10,875,044

1,000,000
2,985,013 18,058,020

162,993 912,092’ 4,080,448
107 12,916 213,088

- 2,249,183 2,249,183
10,875,044

17,001,095

4,606,624
2,706,266

1,000,000
38,044,128

4,606,624
2,706,266

15,440,720 20,682,785 17,1 64,195 10,487,081 63,774,781

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 22,504,057 $ 22,104,576 $ 17,190,648 $ 11,703,655 $ 73,502,936

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Amounts reported for governmental activities in ~e stateraent of net assets are different because:

Ending fund balance - governmeata,~ funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are xxot financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Other ~ong-term sssets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures

and, therefore, are deferred ha the funds.

Bond ~ssuance costs, net of amortization, are ~ot ~xanc~al resources and,
therefore, are not reported h the funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable ha the
current period and therefore are not reported in ~e f~nds.

Total ~ong-term debt, governmental acffivites (53,026,0 [ 2)
Current portion of compensated absences reported wit~i~
governmental funds ~ (65,409),

Interest p~yable on long-term debt does not require current financ~.al resources.

Therefore, interest payable is not reported as a ~ility ha the governmental
funds b~l~nee sheet.

hxternal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of r/sk
management and employee health benefits act[v~:y to individual funds. The
assets and liabilities of the mterna~ service funds are included in governmenta~
activities ha the statement of net assets.

$ 63,774,7gX

291,66g

506,625

(1,X36,429)

(770,297)

Certain activities between funds, including indirect costs and reimbursements,

~e ~ecorded as revcr~ues and expenditures hx the respective funds. These
interfund transactions have been eliminated in the statement of net assets. ~,~,~. 16,786)_

Net assets of governmental activities $ 137,624,542

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Columbia County, Georgia

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

General
Revenues

Taxes - property $ 18,270,025
Taxes - sales 11,273,425
Taxes - other 3,307.572
Licenses and perr~ts 330,763
Intergovemmental 2,792,220
Charges for services 2,986,308
Fines and forfeitures 1.564,247
Investment income 382,082
Contributions and donations 16,325
Other 466,734

Total revenues

Expenditures
Cur~nt:

General government 9,458,172
1udieial system 3,202,859
Public safety 18,393,093
Public works 3,673,896
Health and welfare 1,079,312
Culture and recreation 2,844,259
Housing and development 2,052,280
Miscellaneous

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal
Iaterest

Total expendltumes 40,703,87 t
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 685,830

Other financingsources (uses)
l~oce~s from debt issuance
Proceeds from bond premium
Sale of property
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other f’maneing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Special Lecal Option 2004 General Other Total
Sales Tax Fund Obligation Bond Governmental Governmental

2001-2005 Fund Funds Funds

$ $
13,072,095

271,900
o

386,901

5,471

$ 6,020,390 $ 24,290,415
24,345,520

3,778,850 7,086,422
887,188 1,217,951

3,211,826 6,275,946
3,197~53 6,184,061

310,978 1,875,225
141,965 235,338 1,146,286

67,415 83,740
67,449 539,654

41,389,701 13,736,367 141,965 17,777,187 73,045,220

1,208,565

10,913,014 6,569,702

- 10,666,737
22,694 3,225,553

6,147,521 24,540,614
7,433,563 11,107,459

419,653 1,498,965
609,981 3,454,240
986,963 3,039,243

9,225 9,225
1,448,151 18,930,867

495,000 495,000
1,570,585 "1,570,585

12,121,579 6,569,702 19,143,336 78,538,488

1,614,788 (6,427,737) (1,366,149) (5,493,268)

- 21,432,395 1,317,605 22,750,000
2,156,447 - 2,156,447

74,165 74,165
194,000 477,346 3,090 4,420,737 5,095,173

(2,109,407) (3,090) (2,963,676) (5,076,173)
(l,841,242) 474,256 23,591,932 2,774,666 24,999,612

(1,155,412) 2,089,044 17,164,195 1,408,517 19,506,344

16,596,132 18,593,741 9,078,564 44,268,437

$ 15~440r720 $ 20,682,785 $ 17r164,195 $ 10,487r081 $ ’ 63,774,781

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Amounts ~ported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change ku fund balances - total governmental fi~ads

Governz~ntal funds report capRN outlays as expenditures. ~owevcr, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is alloc~ted over their es@aated useful lives attd
reported as depreciation expen.~e. "2he az~ount by w~-4ch c~tal outlay e~ceeded
depreciation in the current p~od is detailed below:

Ca!fital expenditures 27,994,g56
Deprecmtion expense (7,446,~57)
Net book value of disposals (28,939)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do no~ provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The ~suancc of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides cuxre~t "financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayz~n~, of the p~c~pa~ of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of govgm~n~al fun~. Neither
transaction, however has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report
the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, md similar iter~s when debt is first
issued, whereas these amounts are deferred ~d auaoz’dzcd Lu the statemsat of
activities, Below is the amounts of these differences ~ the treatment of long-term
debt and related items.

Principal amount of bonds issued
Premium related to bond issuance
Current year amortization of premium
Bond issuance costs, net of current year
amortization
Current year amortization of bond issuance costs
Current year principal repayments
Net changes in compensated absences, including amounts
reported in funds

(22,750,000)
(2,156,447)

30g,064

591,053
(84,4.38)
495,000

(484,896)

In the fund financial statements, "interest expense on long-term debt is reported in the
period that the current financial resources are used. ;~ the st, atement of activitids,
interest expense on long-term debt is recorded as the expense is incur~d. This
amount is the difference between recording interest as accrued rather than as paid.

The net revenue of certain activities of the internal service fa;nds is repoRed with
governmental activities.

Certain activities between funds, including indirect costs and reimbursements, are
recorded as revenues and expenditures in the respective funds. These interfxmd
transactions have been eliminated in the statement o~ activities.

Change in net assets of govermn~ntal activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

19,506,344

0.4,031,654) 

(559,995)

(1t4,759)

(599,926)
$ 14,668,32g
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Columbia County, Georgia
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Taxes - property
Taxes - sales
Taxes - other
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Contributions and donations
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General government
Judicial system
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Housing and .development

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Sale of property .
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

$ 18,046,180 $ 18,046,180
10,778,523 10,778,523
2,850,000 2,850,000

300,800 300,800
2,133,353 2,656,640
2,534,262 2,534,262
1,885,000 1,885,000

301,200 301,200
22,000 22,000

1,577,602 3,687,009

Actual
Amounts

18,270,025
11,273,425
3,307,572

330,763
2,792,220
2,986,308
1,564,247

382,082
16,325

466,734
40,428,920 43,061,614 41,389,701

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

12,683,991 9,572,651 9,458,172
3,010,565 3,268,913 3,202,859

15,885,257 18,689,913 18,393,093
3,480,292 3,702,743 3,673,896
1,021,247 1,099,695 1,079,312
2,690,431 2,887,702 2,844,259
2,040,133 2~132,586 2,052,280

40,811,916 41,354,203 40,703,871

(382,996) 1,707,411 685,830

223,845
494,902
457,572

29,963
135,580
452,046
(320,753)

80,882
(5,675)

(3,220,275)
(1,671,913)

114,479
66,054

296,820
28,847
20,383
43,443
80,306

650,332

(1,021,581)

103,500 103,500 74,165 (29,335)
279,496 298,496 194,000 (104,496)

- (2,109,407) .(2,109,407)
382,996 (1,707,411) (1,841,242) (133,831)

$ - $ (1,155,412)

16,596,132

$ (1,155,412)

$ 15,440,720

The notes to the finaaeial statements are aa integral part of this statement.
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Columbia County, Georgia

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2005

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Inventories
Prepaid items
Restricted cash/investments held to pay current
liabilities

¯Total current assets

Noneurrent assets
Restricted cash and investments
Deferred charges
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued compensated absences
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds
Payable from restricted assets

Revenue bonds payable
Accrued interest payable
Customer deposits

Current portion of notes payable and capital leases
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Notes payable¯
Estimated liability for landfill closure and
postelosure care costs
Revenue bonds

Total noneurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Water Solid Storm

and Waste Water
Sewerage Authority . Utility

Fund Fund - Fund

1,308,875
8,452,544
2,611,501

912
577,084
25,864

4,307,952 $ 1,797,097
3,515,093

15,938 225,972
°

25,104,800 1,280,225

3,130

38,081,580 9,119,208 2,026,199

6,278,636
3,624,767

135,960,673 870,405 9,067,699
139,585,440 7,149,041 9,067,699
177,667,020 16,268,249 11,093,898

953,059 71,408
56,901 - 4,791

246,291 - 6,240
71,625

521,285 68,759 313,626

3,065,000 1,235,000 -
311,844 37,359 -
92,796

250,585 - -
5,569,386 1,341,118 396,065

1,339,116

74,954,336
9,422,512

76,293,452 9,422,512
81,862,838 10,763,630 396,065

The notes to the financial statements are aa integral part of this statement.
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$ g34,143 $ 8,248,067 $ 534,831
° M,967,637

270,098 3,!23,509 15,g55
68,759 69,671 2g,77g

577,084
2,139 31,133 317

26,385,025
1,175,139 50,402,126 579,781

- 6,278,636
- 3,624,767

181,008 146,079,785
181,008 155,983,188

1,356,147 206,385,314 579,781

22,553 1,047,020 316,188
3,761 65,453 2,289

19,572 272,103 6,403
71,625

148,032 1,051,702 1,048,31g

120,114

4,300,000
349,203
92,796

370,699
314,032 7,620,601

1,429,064

1,339,116

10,g51,576
74,954,336

1,373,19g

1,429,064 87,145,028
1,743,096 94,765,629 !,373,198

Continued on the following pages.
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Columbia County, Georgia

Statement of Net Assets - Continued
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2005

Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted net assets

Total net assets

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Water Solid Storm

and Waste Water
Sewerage Authority Utility

Fund Fund Fund
i 1

83,713,460 (364,595) 9,067,699
653,921 7,521,502 -

11:36,801 (1,652,288). 1,630,134

. $ 95,804,182 $ 5,504,619
$ 10,69=ffi=ffi===7,833

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of net assets are different
because of the following:

Certain internal service fund assets and liabilities are included with business-type activities.
Interfund indirect cost allocations have been eliminated.
Total net assets for business-type activities
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60,894 92,477,458
o g,175,423

$ (386,949_ ) 111,619,685

(23,~20)
1,116,786

$ ~12,7~3,351
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Columbia County, Georgia

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Intergovemmental
Rental income
Reimbursement
Other

Total operating revenues

Bnsiness-type Activities - Enterprise Fm)ds
Water Solid Storm

and Waste Water
Sewerage Authority Utility

Fund Fund Fund

18,000,568 $ 2,618,896$ 2,170,525
8,545

28,500
°

16,350
18,053,963 2,618,896 2,170,525

Operating expenses
Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies and materials
Repairs and maintenance
Interfund/Interdepartmental charges
Depreciation and amortization
Other costs
Landfill closure and postclosure care costs

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Interest earned
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenue (expense)

3,890,120
1,554,917 3,616
2,707,886

582,107
411,554 1,095,203

4,844,400 646,654
59,189

341,440
485,426
36,088

591,242
630,016

689385
14,050,173 2,435,258 2,084,212

4,003,790 183,638 86,313

392,843 115,707 44,192
(2,775,192) (74,718)
(2,382,349) 40,989 44,192

Income (loss) before transfers, contributions
special items, and extraordinary items 1,621,441 224,627 130,505

Transfers out - -
Capital contributions 6,499,686 4,257,182

Change in net assets 8,121,127 224,627 4,387,687

Total net assets, beginning 87,683,055 5,279,992 6,310,146

Total net assets, ending $ 95,804,182 $ 5,504,619 $ 10,697,833

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of net assets are different
because of the following:

Certain internal service fund assets and liabilities are included with business-type activities.
Inteff-und indirect cost allocations have been eliminated.

Change in net assets of business-tytm activities

The notes to the financial statements ~ an integral part of this statermmt.
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$ 2,344,997 $ 25,134,986 $ 3,721,984
8,545 998,945

28,500
1,095,203 1,095,203

35,992 52,341 ......
35_,!31" .

3,476,191 26,329,575 4.,756,660

284,715 4,516,275 ~.62,467
424,363 2,468 ,322 4,681.,589
147,33~. 2,891,305 21,04i

582,107
86,566 2,184,565 47,i49

231,738 6,252,808
2,622,682 2,681,871

16,966 706,751
3,714,3-’~ 22,284~ 4,902,,24.6

(238,170) 4,035,571 (i45,586)

17,563 570,305 7,707
- .(2,849,910) .

17,563 (2,279,605) 7,707

(220,607) 2,755,966

(19,000) (19,000)
- 10,756,868

(!37,879)

(239,607)

(147,342)

, $ (386,949)

12,493,834 (137,879)

(655,538)

$ (793,4.17)

(23,120)
599,926

$ 13,070,640
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Columbia County, Georgia

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and others
Cash paid to employees

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from issuing bonds
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on revenue bonds
Principal paid on notes / capital leases
Interest paid on revenue bonds, notes and capital
leases
Interfund expenses
Capital and related financing activities - outflows

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and
rdated financing activities

Investing activities
Interest on investments

Net cash provided (used) in investing
activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents/investments

Cash and cash equivalents/investments
Beginning of year

Endofyear

Business.type Activities-Enterprlse Funds
Water Solid Storm

and Waste Water
Sewerage Authority Utility

Fund Fund Fund

18,096,690 $ 2,643,235 $ 2,106,140
(8,128,785) (1,165,457) (780,959)
(4,009,014) (356,697)

5,958,891 1,477,778 968,484

28,940,000 - -
(4,297,370) (600,019)
(5,805,000) (1,140,000)

(239,300)

(2,775,192)

(1,21i,381)

14,611,757

392,843

392,843

20,963,491

13,902,728

$ 34,866,219

(108,633)

(1,248,633) (600,019)

115,707 44,192

115,707 44,192

344,852 412,657

15,037,054 1,384,440

15,381,906 $ 1,797,097

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 3,67g,7g8
(3,237,029)

(299,233)

142,526

$ 26,524,853
(13,312,230)
(4,664,944)

8,547,679

$ 6,741,864
(4,332,487)

(166,866)

242,5!1

1

(47,668)

(19,000)

(66,667)

17,563

17,563

93,422

28,940,000
(4,897,388)
(6,945,eoo)

(286,968)

(2,883,825)
(19,000)

(1,211,381)

12,696,438

570,305

570,305

21,814,422

°

7,707

7,707

250,218

286,613740,721

834,143 $

31,064,943

52,879,365 $ 534,831

Continued on the following pages.
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Columbia County, Georgia

Statement of Cash Flows - Continued
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003

Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization

Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Deferred charges / prepaid expense
Due from other funds
Aceotmts payable
Accrued liabilities
Customer deposits
Due to other funds
Estimated liability for landfill closure and
postclosure care cost

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities

Noncash investing, capital, and financing
activities:

CapEtal contributions from developers

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds
Water Solid Storm

and Waste Water
Sewerage Authority Utility

Fund Fund Fund

4,003,790 $ 183,638 $ 86,313

4,329,858 646,654 630,016

"110,316 24,339 (64,385)
(265,689) \ - -

(694) - 340

12,611 5,431
(2,786,701) 30,788

35,510 (15~257)
4,036

515,854 (66,638) 295,238

689,785
1,955,101 1,294,140 882,171

$ 5,958,891 $ 1,477,778$ 968,484

$ 6,499,686 $ $ 4,257,182

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fm~rzaq

9’~zia

(238,170) $ 4,035,571 $ (145,586)

131,738 5,738,266

202,597 272,867 (14,796)
(265,689)

96 (258) (!2)
66,638 84,680 (9,186)

(32,816) (2,788,729) 53,930
(14,518) .5,735 (4,399)

4,036
9,995. 754,449 362,560

16,966 706,751
380,696 4,512,108 388,097

$
r. 142,526 $ 8,547,679 $ 242,511

$ 10,756,868 $
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Columbia County, Georgia

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2005

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments, mutual funds

Total assets

Liabilities
Due to others

Total liabilities

Net assets
Held in trust for pension benefits

Pension
Trust Fund
Employees’
Retirement Agency

Fund Funds

3,615,554 $ 1,975,343
10,017,502

13,633,056 $ 1,975,343

- 1,975,343
- $ 1,975,343

$ 13,633,056

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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~vestmezxt ~eo~e:
Ne~ appreciation (deprcciatioz~) i,~ ~a~ va~uc of invcs~xcnls $
~tcrcst

Total ~nveslznc~t income 708,0~6

~,660,273
2,368,299

872~74
872,474

~,495,8~5

12,137,241

Employer contributions
Total additions

Benefits
Total deductions

Cha~Ze ~ ~e~ aeee~s

13,633,056

The notes to rite fi.zxanci~ statemems are a~ intogra[ part of ~his statement.
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, GEORGIA

Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2005

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies

Introduction
The financial statements of Columbia County, Georgia (the "County") have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The County has implemented GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements- and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis -for State and Local Governments and related standards. These standards provide for significant changes in terminology
and presentation and for the inclusion of Management’s Discussion and Analysis as required supplementary information.

As permitted by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the County has elected to apply only
applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989 that
do not contradict GASB pronouncements in its accounting and reporting practices for its government-wide and proprietary operations.
The more significant of the County’s accounting policies are described below.

Reporting entity
Columbia County, Georgia, established in 1790 and named in honor of Christopher Columbus, is located in the Central Savannah
River Area of Georgia approximately 135 miles east of Atlanta and five miles northwest of Augusta-Richmond County. The 290
square mile county is bounded on the north by Thurmond Lake and the Savannah River (separating Columbia County from Lincoln
County, Georgia, and McCormick and Edgefield Counties, South Carolina), on the south and east by Augusta-Richmond County, and
on the west by McDuffie County. The County operates under an elected Commission form of government.

The County is governed by a board of five elected County Commissioners (the "Board"). As required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial statements present the County (the primary government) and its
component units. The component units discussed below are included in the County’s reporting entity because of tile signi.ficance of
the operational or financial relationships with the County.

Based upon the application of the GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, criteria, the following funds are included
in the reporting entity.

Blended Component unit
Columbia County Solid Waste Management Authority - The Columbia County Sohd Waste Management Authority (SWMA) 
governed by an eight member Board of Directors, of which at least three members must be elected officials. Each member of the
SWMA is appointed by the Board. Although it is legally separate from the County, the SWMA is reported as if it were part of the
primary government because its sole purpose is to perform development, leasing, and long-term planning of a solid waste facility
(landfill), for the County. The SWMA, which is reported in the Solid Waste Management Fund, an Enterprise Fund, entered into 
intergovemmental agreement with the County to subsidize its operations through the General Fund.

Discretely presented component units
Development Authority of Columbia County - The component unit column in the government-wide financial statements includes the
fiuancial data of the Development Authority of Columbia County. It is reported in a separate column to emphasize that it is legally
separate from the County. The Development Authority is governed by a nine member Board of Directors appointed by the Board of
Commissioners. The Development Authority serves to promote, pursue and implement economic development in the County. The
Development Authority entered into an intergovemmental agreement with the County to subsidize its operations through the General
Fund.

Columbia County Board of Health - The component unit column in the government-wide financial statements includes the financial
data of the Columbia County Board of Health. It is reported in a separate column to emphasize that it is legally separate from the
County. The Board of Health is comprised of seven members, four of which are appointed by the Board of Commissioners. The
operations of the Board of Health are subsidized through the County’s General Fund.
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Bartram Trail CDC, Inc.- The component unit column in the government-wide financial statements includes the financial statements
of Bartram Trail CDC, Inc. Xt is reported in a separate column to emphasize that it is legally separate from the County. Columbia
County is the sole member of this community development corporation (CDC), which is governed by a five member Board 
Directors appointed by the Board of Commissioners. The purpose of Bartram Trail CDC, Inc. is to develop, finance, construct,
acquire, and operate a public golf course, clubhouse and related facilities in Columbia County; to finance costs of the project by
issuing bonds, notes or other obligations; to convey tide, possession and use of the project to Columbia County upoh discharge of the
debt; and to operate exclusively for charitable and educational purposes.

Complete financial statemems of each of the blended and discretely presented component units may be obtained at the County’s
administrative office. The address is as follows:

Columbia County, Georgia
General Administrative Offices
630 Ronald Reagan Drive
Evans, Georgia 30809

Certain County elected officials collect and disburse taxes, fees, frees, etc. Separate records of accountability are maintained for such
transactions, which are recorded as agency funds of the County. Receipts transferred from these funds to the County’s General Fund,
Debt Service Fund and Special Revenue Funds are included as revenues in these funds. Operating costs for" these officials are
included as expenditures in the General Fund. These elected officials are as follows:

Tax Commissioner
Probate Court Judge
Magistrate Cou~ Judge
Clerk of Superior Court
Sheriff

~a~is e~ ]?~’e~e=tatlea
Government-wide statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the primary
government. These statements include the f’mancial activities of the overallgovernment. Eliminations have been made to minimize
the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the
County. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovemmental revenues, and other non-exchange
transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to externalparties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for die different business-type
activities of the County and for each function of the County’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specificaUy
associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that
have been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid 
the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and Co) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classif’ted as program revenues, ~ciuding all taxes,
are presented as general revenues.

Fund financial statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds. Separate statements for each
fund category- governmental, proprietary and fiduciary- are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. ALl remaining governmental and. eraterp~se fimds are
aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operation revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal
activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values.
Nouoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, resuh from uon-exchange transactions or ~ncillary activities.
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, GEORGIA

Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2005

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the County. Fiduciary funds are not reflected
in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. The General Fund accounts for all financial
resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. The primary revenue sources are ad valorem
taxes, local option sales taxes, and various other taxes and licenses. The primary expenditures are for the judicial system,
public safety, development, health and weffare, recreation, street maintenance and improvements.

Special Local Option Sales Tax Fund 2001-2005 - to account for the property acquisition and construction of projects
designated to be funded by revenue from the special purpose local option sales tax collected during 2001 through 2005.

2004 General Obligation Bond Fund - to account for construction projects funded through the 2004 General Obligation
Bonds.

The County reports the following nonmajor governmental funds:

Building Standards Fund - to account for building permits and inspection fees.

Federal Asset Sharing Fund - to account for assets seized or confiscated by federal courts.

State Condemnation Fund - to account for assets seized or confiscated by state courts.

Street Lights Fund - to account for the street light assessments used for maintenance of street lights in certain subdivisions.

Recreation Advisory Board Fund - to account for various projects sponsored by the Recreation Advisory Board to raise
funds for recreation equipment.

911 Fund - to account for the 911 fees assessed on landline and cellular telephones used for the maintenance and operations
of the 911 service.

Jail Fund - to account for fines charged by the County to be used for jail improvements.

Drug Abuse Treatment Fund - to account for fines charged by the County to be used for drug abuse treatment and
prevention.

Supplemental Juvenile Services Fund - to account for fines charged to juvenile offenders to be used for juvenile services.

Community Center Operations Fund - to account for the activities of the Columbia County community centers;

Community Greenspace Fund - to account for fimds used to acquire real property for the preservation of greenspace,
pursuant to the Georgia Greenspace Program as established in OCGA 36-22-1 et seq.

Hotel/Motel Fund - to account for hotel/motel tax collections, pursuant to OCGA 48-13-50 et seq.

Multiple Grant Fund - to account for all grants not meeting the 2% materiality test and not used to f’mance general fund
operations.
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Ne~e 1{ ~ Su~ana~ry ¢~ 4g~a’~ca~t ~cce~t~g I~¢I~c~e~ (C®a~n~e@

Library Beazg ~ - to account for the activity of the Columbia County Library Board.

C~e~a ~d 1Beguile/I~er~eaSa~ Nun~ - to account for funds used for beautification projects on County property.

IF~re Set,rices ]F~g - to account for taxes collected in special service districts within the unincorporated area for purpose of
providing fare services.

Sl~er~f~’~ G~ffII~ea~fie~ I~ - to account for funds donated to the Sheriff s office from external persons or entities.

I[usuraaee Prem/a~a Tg~ ~un6 - to account for services funded by insurance premium taxes, pursuant to
OCGA 33-8-8.3 et seq.

S~ee~g~ L~eg~ @~¢ien Sa~e~ ~ax ~mn~ X9~(~-2~ - to account for the property acquisition and construction of projects
designated to be funded by revenue from the special purpose local option sales tax collected during 1996 through 2000.

Cap~g~ I~e~d/Dr~aage PrNeet~ ~d - to account for grant-funded special projects.

AirI~ert Aather~ty Fund - to account for the activity of the Columbia County Airport Authority.

1998 Gerber’g1 ©b~gg~en head Nuad - to account for construction projects f~ded through the 1998 General Obligation
Bonds.

W~ndwa~ Sewer Prejeet I~ad - to account for the extension of sewer lines to Windmill Plantation subdivision.

Debt Service ~und - ~g C_~enera~ @b~g~de~ Be~d - to account for property tax funds designated to be used for principal
and interest payments on governmental fund debt.

Debt Service ~und- 2~4 C~eaera~ ©b~ig~fiem Bemd - to account for sales tax funds designated to be used for principal
and interest payments on governmental fund debt.

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:

Water arid[ Sewerage [~ur~d - to account for water and sewer operations as well as construction and maintenance of water
and sewerage projects.

So~d W~ste Auther~Vj Furad - to account for debt service, construction and property of the landfill.

Sterra Water lUt~ 1?and - to account for the cost of providing storm water management services and maintaining and
improving the County’s storm water infrastructure.

The County reports the following nonmajor enterprise funds:

Se~d W~te l%[~nagezaeat I~und - to account for the cost of operating and maintaining the landfill facility.
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, GEORGIA

Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2005

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds are used to account for the operations that provide services to other
departments or agencies for the government, on a cost-reimbursement basis. The County has three internal service funds:

Employee Medical Fund- to account for employer and employee contributions to the County’s medical plan.

Risk Management Fund - to account for the County’s risk management program.

Customer Service/Information Center Fund - to account for the County’s customer service/information center.

Employees’ Retirement Pension Trust Fund - This fund accounts for the employer’s contributions to the retirement
program, together with interest and dividend income which are used to fund the program.

Agency Funds - Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of operating results. Agency
funds are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of others. The County maintains the following agency funds:

Clerk of Superior Court - to account for the receipt and disbursement of court ordered frees and fees made on behalf
of third parties.

Probate Court - to account for the receipt and disbursement of funds held On behalf of others and fees for services
provided under State law.

Magistrate Court - to account for the receipt and disbursement of bonds and eourt ordered fines and fees made on
behalf of third parties.

Sheriff’s Office - to account for the receipt and disbursement of fees and services provided under State law.

Tax Commissioner - to account for tax billings, collections, and remittances held by the Tax Commissioner on behalf
of other governmental agencies.

General Trust and Ageney - to account for miscellaneous receipts held on behalf of other governments and/or other
funds.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
Government-wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements - The government-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus, except for agency funds which have no
measurement focus. The government-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of
when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) value without directly
receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from
property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the
fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
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Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2)
operating.grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and cou~buZions, including special assessments. Interrtally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather thmx as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally
result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the County enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales ~.nd services. The
County also recognizes as operating revenue the port2on of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the
system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements s Governmental fimds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under ~s method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Revenues
are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose,, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of
the current fiscal period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on
general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they
have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental fimds. Proceeds of general long-term
debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, licenses, interest revenues and charges for services. State-shared revenues
collected and held by the state at year-end on behalf of the County also are recognized as revenue. Fines, fees and permits are not
susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash.

Grant revenues which are unearned at year-end are recorded as unearned revenues. Under the terms of grant agreements, the County
funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus,
when program expenses are incurred, both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available to finance the program. The County’s
policy is to f~rst apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then general
revenues.

Cash a~ cash equ~va~e~t~
The County’s cash and cash equivalents are considered lobe cash on hand, demand deposits, deposits with insignificant early
withdrawal penalties, and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

The County follows GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External
Investment Pools¯ Nonparticipating interest-earning "investment contracts (investments whose value is not affected by interest rate or
other market changes), including savings accounts, certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, money market investments (short-
term, highly liquid debt instruments including commercial paper, banker’s acceptances and U.S. Treasury and agency obligations) and
participating interest-bearing investment contracts, that have a remaining maturity at purchase of one year or less are reported at cost
or amortized cost assuming their fair value has not been impacted by changes in the credit worthiness of the issuer or similar factors¯
A.U other investments are reported at fair value (the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale).
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, GEORGIA

Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2005

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments
Investments are reported at fair value, which is determined as follows: short-term investments are reported at cost, which
approximates fair value; securities traded on national exchanges are valued at current prices or current prices of similar securities; "
securities for which an established market does not exist are reported at estimated fair value using selling prices for similar
investments forwhich there is an active market. There are no investments reported at amortized Cost.

Receivables
All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be
uncollectible.

Allowance for bad debt
The allowance for bad debt covers amounts owed from individuals, companies and other entities which have purchased services from
County owned entities or which have been provided services from the County. The allowance was determined by analysis of the year-
end receivable balances for those accounts which the County believes will not be eoUected based on past history.

Interfund receivables/payables and internal balances
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or services rendered.
These receivables and.payables are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance sheet of the fund
financial statements and as "internal balances" on the statement of net assets in the government-wide financial statements.

Inventories and prepaid items
Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded
as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items.

Restricted assets
Proceeds from debt and funds set aside for payment of Enterprise Fund revenue bonds are classified as restricted assets since their use
is limited by applicable bond indebtedness. Other cash funds available for use for specific purposes are classified as restricted.

Capital assets
Capital assets are defined by the County as assets with art initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in
excess of one year. This minimum capitalization cost is applicable for all categories of capital assets. Purchased or constructed
capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the
date of donation. General infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2002, consist of the streets network that was acquired or that
received substantial improvements subsequent to July 1, 1980. The streets network is reported at estimated historical cost using
deflated replacement cost. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets’ lives are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method. A summary of the estimated useful lives is as follows:

Vehicles
Furniture and fLxtures
Machinery and equipment
Utility plant and distribution systems
Storm water systems
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Donated subdivisions
Infrastructure

3 to 8 years
3 to 8 years

5 to 10 years
10 to 50 years
10 to 50 years
10 to 50 years
10 to 50 years
25 to 75 years
25 to 75 years
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Ce~¢r~e~em coat o c~¢a~a~m
tn the proprietary funds, construction costs include costs incurred in the construction of assets, engineering fees and capitalized net
interest costs as defined in FASB Statement No. 34, Capi}alization of Interest Cost and FASB Statement No. 62~ Capitalization of
Interest Cost in Situations Involving Certain Tax-Exempt Borrowings and Certain Gifts and Grants, for specified projects.
Capitalized interest totaling approximately $72g,000 was recorded for the year ended June 30, 2005¯

Common,aCe5 absences
The County’s policy is to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused leave benefits. The County’s government-wide and
proprietary funds include aa accrual for the estimated compensation costs attributable to employee earned but unused leave benefits.

Long-term ~5Eg~de~s
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental.activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund
type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the straight-~ne method that approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of ~ applicable
bond premiums or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, as
expenditures during the period the costs are incurred. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other tingeing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Net a~et~/fu~d ~a~ce~
Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in capital assets, net of related debt;
restricted; and unrestricted. P, estricted net assets represent constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state statute.

The equity section Of the governmental fund financial statement balance sheet is comprised of these major fund balance elements:
reserved, unreserved/designated and unreserved/undesignated. Reserves represent the portion of fund balance that is (t) not available
for appropriation or expenditure and/or (2) is segregated legally for a specific future use. To indicate tentative fuuare plans for current
resources, a portion of unreserved fund balance is shown as designated. All other current resources are shown as unreserved,
undesignated on the balance sheet.

U~e o~ e~t~n~e~
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted ha the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the £mancial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses and
expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Budgetary ~er~t~n

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Annual
appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, special revenue funds, and debt service funds. The County adopts a project
length budget for each capital project fired.
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, GEORGIA

Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2005

Note 2 - Stewardship, compliance, and accountability (Continued)

The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

1. Prior to June 1, the Director of Financial Services begins receiving various departmental and agency budget requests for the
fiscal year commencing July 1.

2. The County Administrator, Director of Financial Services, Board of Commissioners and other administrative personnel
review in detail the budget requests with the departments and agencies.

3. Along with the budget review, public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments.

4. The proposed operating budgets are formally adopted by the Board in June for the fiscal year commencing July 1.

5. The legal level of budgetary control is the department level.

6. All appropriations lapse at year-end.

7. The operating budgets originally adopted may be amended throughout the year as presented below:

a. Transfers within departments, except salary line items, $5,000 or less may be authorized by the Finance Director.

b. Transfers within departments, except salary line items, in excess of $5,000 may be authorized by the County
Administrator.

c. Transfers between departments or funds shall be by authority of the Board.

d. Increase or decrease in the total fund appropriation shall be by authority of the Board.

e. Increase or decrease in salary appropriation within any department shall be by authority of the Board.

f. Appropriation of fund balances in excess of established reserve requirements shall be by authority of the Board.

g. Items c - f above must be reviewed by the Management and Financial Services Committee.

Excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual departments

During the year, County expenditures did not exceed the total budget authorization.

Deficit fund balances or net assets

The following funds had deficits at June 30, 2005:

Special Revenue Funds
Community Center Operations Fund - The fund deficit of $681,248 is due primarily to maintenance costs of the facility
not supported through rental fees. The deficit will be funded by future rental fees as utilization of the Center increases and
transfers from the General Fund.

Enterprise Funds
Solid Waste Management Fund- The deficit net assets of $386,949 is primarily a result of a decrease in facility usage due
to a filled capacity of 97%. The landfill is scheduled to close during the next fiscal year. The deficit will be funded with
transfers from the Solid Waste Authority Fund.
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Deposits and investments as of June 30, 2005 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

Statement of net assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted
Investments - unrestricted
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Investments - restricted

Fiduciary funds:
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted
Investments - unrestricted

$ 36,125,457
43,889,482
6,621,361

26,042,300

5,590,897
10,017,502

$128~286~999

Component units - Deposits consisted of cash deposits with financial institutions, cash on hand, and deposits with brokerage houses.
The amounts are classified in the accompanying balance sheet as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted- Development AuthoriW
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted - Board of Health
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted- Bartram Trail

$ 117,802
253,119

1,566,407
$ L9_323. I

As of June 30, 2005, the County had the following investments and maturities.

Investment
U.S. Treasury

Maturities
11/15/2006-2/28/2007

Fair Value
$ 997,250

U.S..Government Agencies
Federal National Mortgage Assn
Federal Home Loan Bank
Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Federal Farm Credit Bank

1/9/2006-7/15/2006
6/16/2006-10/30/2008

1/26/2007
11/8/2006

9,708,218
7,440,905
1,964,580
2,965,320

Bond Mutual Funds
Pioneer High Yield A
Schwab Total Bond Market
Van Kampen Eq and Inc A

4.8 years average
4.2 years average
4.1 years average

103,999
465,710

2,143,119

Total Investments for note 25,789,101

Other Mutual Funds 7,304,674

Certificates of Deposit 46,855,508

Total Investments from Balance Sheet 79,949,283
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, GEORGIA

Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2005

Note 3 - Deposits and investments (continued)

Interest Rate Risk. The County does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk. Statutes authorize the County to invest in obligations of the State of Georgia, other states, or the United States
Government; obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the United States Government or an agency or corporation of the United
States Government; and/or repurchase agreements and certificates of deposit which are secured by direct obligations of Georgia or the
United States Government. The County has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. The County’s
investments in US Agencies (Federal National Mortgage Assoc., Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Home loan Mortgage and Federal
Farm Credit Bank) are rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s and Aaa by Moody’s Investors Service. The Pension Trust Fund had
investments in the bond mutual funds Schwab Total Bond Market Index, Van Kampen Equity Income and Pioneer High Yield Bond
A, which had average credit ratings of AAA, AA.A and BB, respectively.

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
County will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
The County had no policy on custodial credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The County places no limit on the amount that the County may invest in any one issuer. More than 5
percent of the County’s investments are in Federal National Mortgage Association (12%) and Federal Home Loan Bank (9%).

Note 4 - Receivables

Property taxes are an enforceable lien on property owned as of January 11 The tax rate is normally set by the end of August, and
property taxes may be paid after receipt of the tax bill. Taxes are delinquent sixty-one days after mailing by the Tax Commissioner.
Property tax revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available. Availab!e revenues include those property tax
receivables expected to be collected within sixty days.

Vehicles become subject to property tax on January 1 following the year of purchase. The tax is due on the registered owner’sdate of
birth. Tax is determined based on the assessed value of the vehicle as of January 1.

Property taxes are recorded as receivables when levied. Property taxes receivable, reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts and
amounts collected within sixty days of the statement date (the amount "available"), is recorded as deferred revenue until collected.
Such revenue is deferred because the amount is measurable, although not available.

Property taxes were levied on August 16, 2004. Tax bills were mailed on August 16, 2004 and were due upon receipt. Property taxes
were delinquent if not paid by November 15, 2004.

The receivable amounts on the accompanying statements are net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. The allowances are as
follows:

Receivable Fund Amount

Taxes

Accounts
General Fund $ 15,000
Solid Waste Management Fund 114,642
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Due From/To Other Funds

The composition of interfund balances as of Sune 30, 2005 is as follows:

~g~ab~e F~dl General

20O4 Cnmeral
Obligation

Bond
General $ $ 46,930
SPLOST 2001-2005 249,373
Water and Sewerage 521,285
Storm Water Utih’ty 312,714 -
Solid Waste Authority - -
Solid Waste Mamgem~t, noramjor 148,032
Nonmajor C~vemmental 619,740
Employee Medical Internal Service 1,048,_318

$ 2,899,462 $

Solid Waste
Water arid i~mgem~t, Nonmajor
Sewerage nonn~or Governmental

$ $

912
68,759

Interral
Service Total

$ 5,388,540 $ 28,778 $ 5,464,248
249,373
521,285
313,626

68,759
148,032
619,740

1,048,318
46r930 $ 912 $ 68,759 $ 5,388,540 $ 28,778 $ 8,433,381

The County uses Due-To / Due-From accounts to account for loans between funds for cash management purposes.

Transfers To/From Other Funds

Transfers in (out) for the year ended June 30, 2005 is summarized below:

2-0-0~---Oeneral
SPLOST 2001. Obligation Nonmajor

%rar~fer out: General 2005 Bond Governmental Total
General $ $ $ - $ 2,109,407 $ 2,109,407
SPLOST 2001-2005 3,090 3,090
Solid Waste Management, nonmajor 19,000 19,000
Nonmajor Governmental 175,000 477,346 2,311,330 2,963,676

Total transfers $ 194,000 $ 477,346 $ 3,090 $ 4,420,737 $ 5,095,173

Transfers between the General Fund and other nonmajor governmental funds were primarily to support the operations of the funds.
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, GEORGIA

Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2005

Note 6 - Capital assets

A summary of changes in the capital assets is as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land
Infrastructure - Right of way land
Construction in process

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Beginning

Balances Increases Decreases

7,246,838 $ 1,570,637
18,696,437 693,744
9,829,437 7,388,765

35,772,712 9,653,146

Ending

Balances

- $ 8,817,475
- 19,390,181

(91,613) 17,126,589

(91,613) 45,334,245

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure
Vehicles, machinery and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

69,040,095 2,160,284
2,502,659 4,003,596

147,574,814 8,222,505
11,929,049 4,046,948

231,046,617 18,433,333

- 71,200,379
- 6,506,255
- 155,797,319

(388,861) 15,587,136

(388,861) 249,091,089

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure
Vehicles, machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

(25,640,234) (2,490,231)
(95,594) (112,611)

(123,388,713) (3,305,633)
(9,047,457) (1,538,382)

(158,171,998) (7,446,857)

72,874,619 10,986,476

(28,130,465)
(208,205)

- (126,694,346)
359,922 (10,225,917)

3.59,922 (165,258,933)

(28,939) 83,832,156

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 108,647,331 $ 20,639,622 $ (120,552) $ 129,166,40t

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:
Governmental activities:

General government $
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Recreation and parks
Housing and development
Health and welfare

283,059
645,984

2,165,469
3,805,520

320,011
68,948

157,866

$ 7,446,857
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C/_, ©XGL6.

Water and Sewerage Fund
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in process

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Utility plant and d’~tribution systems
Donated subdivisions
Machinery and equipment
Furniture
Vehicles

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Utility plant and distribution systems
Donated subdivisions
Machinery and equipment
Furniture
Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Water and Sewerage Fund capital assets, net

Solid Waste Authority Fund
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land
Capital assets being depreciated:

Land improvements
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Solid Waste Authority Fund capital assets, net

gaa® 3@ 2@@5

Begimaing

Balances Increases Decreases

472,141 $
29,641,,392 4,657,329

30,113,533 4,657,329

- 15,345
1,499,805

90,037,615 7,706,154
50,757,662 5,951,569

2,920,220 63,900
19,124

1,5,54,336 233,672

146,788,762 13~970,640

$
(7,830,913)

(7,830,913)

(19,890)

(19,890)

(307)
(429,004) (49,063)

(26,975,173) (2,334,749)
(17,107,246) (1,343,336)

(1,789,808) (406,351)
(12,966) (1,368)

(1,094,624) (194,683)

(47,408,821) (4,329,857)

99,379,941 9,640,783

129,493#74 $ 14,298,112 $ (7,830,913)

19,890

19,890

552,894 $

96,101
34,830

6,350,218
371,593

6,852,742

(96,101)
(33,149)

(5,397,685)
(371,593)

(5,898,528)
954,214

$ 1,507,108 $

(1,682)
(635,021)

(636,703)

,(636,703)

(636,703) 

$ 472,141
26~467,808

26,939,949

15,345
1,499,805

97,743,769
56,709,231

2,984,120
19,124

1,768,118

160,739~512

(307)
(478,067)

(29,309,922)
(18,4.50,582)

(2,i96,159)
(14,334)

(1,269,417)

(51,718,788)

109,020,724

$ 135,960,673

$ 552,894

96,10.1
34,830

6,350,218
371,593

6,852,742

(96,101)
(34,831)

(6,032,706)
(371,593)

(6,535,231)

317,511

$ 870,405.
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, GEORGIA

Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

Note 6 - Capital assets (Continued)

Business-type Activities - continued:
Solid Waste Management Fund, nonmajor

Capital assets being depreciated:
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Solid Waste Management Fund capital assets, net

Storm Water Utility Fund
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land

Capital assets being depreciated:
I.and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Storm water systems

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Storm water systems

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Storm Water Utility Fund capital assets, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

June 30,2005

Increases Dccrcases Ending Balances

$ 287,847 $
544,460
832,307

$ 287,847
544,460
832,307

(86,354) (57,569)
¯ (433,20.7) (74,169)

(519,56!) (131,738)
312,746 (131,738)

$ 312,746 $ (131,738) $

(143,923)
(507,376)
(651,299)
181,008

$ 181,008

$ 445,645$ 400,645 $ 45,000 $

- 64,200
262,451

8,449
8,752,243 4,748,000.
9,023,143 4,812,200

64,200
262,451

8,449
13,500,243.
13,835~43

- (1,605)
(154,233) (51,291)

(7,605) (845)
. (4,421#35) (576,275)

(4,583273) (630,016)
4#39,870 4,182,184

$ 4,840,515 $ 4,227,184 $ -

(1,605)
(205,524)

(8,450)
¯ : (4,997,710)

(5,213,289)
8,622,054

$ 9,067,699

$ 136,153,843 $ 17,756,855 .$ (7,830,913.)$ 146,079,785
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I~i~ere~e~y pre~eateg e~zape~e~ u~
Development Authority

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Land improvements

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Land improvements

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Development Authority capital assets, net

Board of Health
Capital assets being depreciated:

Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Board of Health capital assets, net

Bartram Trail CDC
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated
Bartram Trail CDC capital assets, net

Beginning

Balances Increases Decreases

Ending

Balmces

$ 460,594
28,600

489,194

$ (11,700) $ 448,894
28,600

(11,700) 477,494.

2,286,429

, 98,641
2~385,070

2,286,429

.. 98,641
2,3851070

(5o3,o15)
(6,,165)

, (5o9,18o)
1,~75,890

2,365,o85,

(91,457)
(2,466)

(93,923)

(93,923)

$. (93,9,23)

(594,472)
(8,631)

(603,103)
1,781,967

$ 2,259,461

$ 258,743. $
258,743

$ $ 258,743.

258,743

(231,309)

. (231,309)
27,434$ ¯ 27,434.

(27,434)
(27,43@

(27,434)

,$,, (27,434) $

(258~743)

(258,743)

$ 1,500,000
2,105,810

... 3,605,810
$ 3,6Q5,810

$ - $
3,861,693

3~861,693

$ 3,861,693 $ .... -,,

$ 1,500,000
5,967,503

7,467~503.

$ 7~67,503
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, GEORGIA

Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June30,2005

Note 7 - Long-term and short-term obligations

A. General obligation bonds

General Obligation Bonds Series 1998 - serviced by property taxes dedicated for debt service
On October 1, 1998, the County issued the $28,715,000 Columbia County, Georgia, General Obligation Bonds Series 1998.

The Series 1998 Bonds were issued to (a) finance the costs of acquiring, constructing and equipping a new courthouse annex and
renovating the existing courthouse, Co) finance the costs of improving the existing County detention center and (c) pay certain costs 
issuing the Series 1998 Bonds.

Interest on the General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998 is to be paid semi-annually on February 1 and August 1 of each year and
principal is paid February 1 of each year as follows:

Governmental activities
General Obligation Bonds~ Series 1998

Coupon

June 30, Principal Interest Total Rate

2006 $ 580,000$ 1,369,998$ 1,949;998 4.00
2007 655,000 1,346,798 2,001,798 4.05
2008 745,000 1,320,270 2,065,270 4.15
2009 830,000 1,289,352 2,119,352 4.25
2010 920,000 1,254,078 2,174,078 5.00

2011-2015 5,920,000 5,502,037 11,422,0375.00 - 4.85
2016-2020 8,350,000 3,998,775 12,348,7754.88- 5.63
2021-2025 8,975,000 939,719 9,914,719 5.63- 5.00

$_._ 26,975,00(3$ 17,021,027$ 43,996,027

General Obligation Bonds Series 2004 - serviced by special purpose local option sales taxes
On November 4, 2004, the County issued the $22,750,000 Columbia County, Georgia, General Obligation Sales Tax Bonds Series
2004.

The Series 2004 Bonds were issued to (a) finance County, public safety, and recreation facilities, Co) pay capitalized interest and 
pay expenses incident to the issuance of the Bonds. The face amount of $21,432,395 was recorded in the 2004 General Obligation
Bond Fund, aeapital projects fund, to account for the proceeds to be used for capital expenditures. The face amount of $1,317,605
was recorded in the 2004 General Obligation Bond Debt Service Fund to account for the capitalized interest proceeds to be used for
future interest payments.

Interest on the General Obligation Sales Tax Bonds, Series 2004 is to be paid semi-annually on January 1 and July 1 of each year and
principal is paid January 1 of each year as follows:

Governmental activities
General Obligation Sales Tax Bond% Series 2004

Coupon

June 30, Principal Interest Total Rate

2006 $ - $ 1,137,500$ 1,137,500 5.00
2007 4,325,000 1,137,500 5,462,500 5.00
2008 4,425,000 921,250 5,346,250 5.00
2009 4,535,000 700,000 5,235,000 5.00
2010 4,660,000 473,250 5,133,250 5.00
2011 4,805,000 240,250 5,045,250 5.00

$ 22,750,000$ 4,609,750$27,359,750
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The Water and Sewerage Revenue Bond Ordinances provide that certain funds be established and maintained whi[e the bonds are
outstanding. The funds required and the purpose of each, are as follows:

1. Revenue Fund - To receive all revenue of the water and sewer operation, and fund the other required funds.
2. Sinking Funds - To provide a means for payment of principal and interest.
3. Renewal and Extension Fund - To make replacements, additions, extensions aad improvements to the system, and to pay principal

and interest oa bonds and any obligations payable from the sinldng fund.
4. Operation, Maintenance and Repair Fund - To pay reasonable and necessary costs of operating, maintaining and repairing the

system.
5. Arbitrage Rebate Fund - To assure compliance with the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code.

The ordinance specifies the minimum levels of funding required to be maintained in the sinking funds and the Renewal and Extension
fund. Each bond is secured by a first lien on and pledge of the net revenues of the System. The following is a schedule of the
outstanding revenue bonds in the System:

gerie~ ~993
[n connection with the refunding of the 1988 Water and Sewerage Refunding Revenue Bonds, the System issued Series 1993 Water
and Sewerage Refunding Revenue Bonds in the aggregate prhacipal amount of $10,735,000.

The Series 1993 Bonds were paid in full during the fiscal year in connection with the issuance of the $28,940,000 Water and Sewerage
Revenue Bonds, Series 2004. . -

Serles 31996
On March 1, 1996, the System issued $14,800,000 Water and Sewerage Revenue Bonds, Series 1996.
refunding Series 2001A, the System partially refunded Series 1996 in the amount of $10,395,000.

In connection with the

The Series 1996 Bonds were issued to provide funds, together with other available funds of the System, to (a) finance, in whole or 
part, the cost of adding to, improving, extending and equipping the Water and Sewerage System of said County, and CO) pay certain
expenses necessary to accomplish the foregoing.

The Series 1996 Bonds are secured by a first lien on and pledge of the net revenues of the Water and Sewerage System on a parity
with the Columbia County Water and Sewerage Bonds, Series 1986 and 1988 issued during prior years. Principal and interest on the
Series 1996 Bonds is insured by a muniefpal bond insurance policy issued by AMBAC Indemnity Corporation simultaneously with
the delivery of the Series 1996 Bonds.

Interest is to be paid semi-annually on June I and December 1 0f each year and principal is to be paid annually on June 1 of each year.

Series-~996A
In connection with the refunding of the 1991A Water and Sewerage Revenue Bonds, the System issued Series 1996A Water and
Sewerage Refunding Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $6,970,000.

Interest is to be paid semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 of each year and principal is to be paid annually on Iune 1 of each year.

Series 24~0~
On March 1, 2000, the System issued $25,000,000 Water & Sewerage Revenue Bonds Series 2000. In connection with the refunding
Series 2001A, the System partially refunded Series 2000 in the amount of $8,510,000.

The Series 2000 Bonds were issued to provide funds, together with other funds of the County available therefore, to (a) finance, 
whole or in part, the cost of adding to, improving, extending and equipping the Water and Sewerage System of said County, and Co)
pay certain expenses necessary to accomplish the foregoing.
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The Series 2000 Bonds are secured by a first lien on and pledge of the net revenues of the Water and Sewerage System. Payment of
the principal and interest on the Series 2000 Bonds is insured by a municipal bond insurance pohcy which was issued by Financial
Guaranty Insurance Company simultaneously with the delivery of the Series 2000 Bonds.

Interest is tobe paid semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 of each year and principal is to be paid annually on Iune 1 of each year.

Series 2001
In connectionwith the refunding of the 1992 Water and Sewerage Revenue Bonds, the System issued Series 2001 Water and
Sewerage Refunding Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $12,155,000.

Interest is to be paid semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 of each year and principal is to be paid annually on June 1 of each year.

Series 2001A
In connection with the refunding of the 1996 Water and Sewerage RevenueBonds and 2000 Water and Sewerage Revenue Bonds, the
System issued Series 2001A Water and Sewerage Refunding Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $21,020,000.

Interest is to be paid semi-annually on June I and December 1 of each year and principal is to be paid annually on June 1 of each year.

Series 2004
In connection with the refunding of the 1993 Water & Sewerage Refunding Revenue Bonds, the System issued Series 2004 Water and
Sewerage Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $28,940,000.

$25,785,000 of the Series 2004 Bonds were issued for the purpose of (a) paying the costs of the acquisition, construction and
equipping of improvements to the Water and Sewerage System of said County, Co) paying the premium for a municipal bond
insurance policy and the premium for a municipal bond debt service reserve insurance policy and (c) paying the costs of issuing the
Series 2004 Bonds. $3,155,000 of the Series 2004 Bonds were issued for the purpose of refunding the Water and Sewerage Revenue
Bonds, Series 1993 maturing on December 1, 2008.

The Series 2004 Bonds are secured by a pledge of and lien on the net revenues of the Water and Sewerage System. Payment of the
principal and interest on the Series 2004 Bonds is insured by a municipal bond insurance policy which was issued by Financial
Security Assurance Inc. simultaneously with the delivery of the Series 2004 Bonds.

Interest is to be paid semi-annually on June 1 and December I of each year and principal is to be paid annually on June 1 of each year.

C. Revenue Bonds - serviced by the Solid Waste Authority Fund

On November 1, 1994, the Solid Waste Management Authority of Columbia County, Georgia, issued $7,970,000 Landfill Revenue
Bonds, Series 1994.

The Series 1994 Bonds were issued to (a) finance the cost of certain improvements to the Landfill Facility, and (b) to pay certain costs
of issuing the Series 1994 Bonds.

The Series 1994 Bonds are limited, special obligations of the Authority and are secured and payable from revenues received under an
Intergovernmental Agreement for the development, leasing and operation of a solid waste facility between the Authority and
Columbia County. The scheduled payment of principal and interest on the Series 1994 Bonds when due is guaranteed under an
insurance policy issued with the dehvery of the Series 1994 Bonds by Municipal Bond Investors Assurance Corporation.

Interest is to be paid semi-annually on January 1 and July 1 of each year and principal is to be paid annually on July 1 each year.
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A summary of revenue bond indebtedness as of June 30, 2005, ~s as follows:

Water and Sewerage Unrefunded Revenue Bonds, Series 1996
W~te~ and Sewerage Refunding Revenue ~onds, Series 1996A
Water and Sewerage Unmfunded Revenue Bonds, Se~es 2000
Water and Sewerage Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001
Water and Sdwer~ge Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A
Water ~d Sewe~ge Revenue Bonds, Series 2004
Solid W~s~e Management Au~or~ty Revenue Bonds, Series 1994
Total Outstanding Revenue Debt

Bond issue pre~ums
Bond issue discounts
Deferred loss on zefunding

$ 40,000
5,080,000

15,565,000
9,560,000

20,450,000
28,835,000

1,235,000
80,765,000

1,380,494
(73,622)

(2,817,536)

$ 79,254,336

The ~aual requirements of principal and ~nterest to amortize e~eh of the County’s outstanding revenue debt as of Jrme 30, 2005 are as
follows:

~®ve~=e ~em~l ~eb~; Coupon

June 30, Principal Interest Total Rate

Water ~md Sewerage U~re~u~e~ ~evem~e Do~, ger~e~ ~9~
2006 $ 40,000 $ 2,020 $ 42,020

$ 40,000 $ 2,02o ....  2,92,
5.05

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

$

795,000 $ 266,333$ 1,061,333
840,000 226,185 1,066,185
880,000 183,345 1,063,345
925,000 137,585 1,062,585
970,000 88,560 1,058,560
670,000 36,180 706,180

5,080,000 $ 938,188 $ 6,018,188

5.05
5.10
5.20
5.30
5.40
5.40
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Note 7 - Long-term and short-term obligations (continued)

Business-type Activities~ continued
Revenue Bond Debt

Jtme 30, Principal Interest Total

Water and Sewerage Unrefunded Revenue Bonds~ Series 2000
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010

2011-2015
2016-2020
2021-2025

$ 4OO,O0O
45O,000
500,000
550,000
600,000

3,205,000
9,860~000

$ 15,565,000

$

Coupon
Rate

860,435 $ 1,260,435 4.93
840,715 1,290,715 4.98
818,305 1,318,305 5.02
793,205 1,343,205 5.07
765,320 1,365,320 5.12

3,673,000 3,673,000 5.12
3,579,700 6,784,700 5.12
1,690,425 11,550,425 5.12

$ 13,021,105$ 28,586,105

Water and Seweraee Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001
$ 800,000 $ 387,973 $ 1,187,973 3.50

800,000 359,972 1,159,972 3.65
795,000 330,773 1,125,773 3.80

1,580,000 300,562 1,880,562 4.00
2,035,000 237,363 2,272,363 4.25
3,550,000 211,437 3,761,437 4.25

$ 9,560,000$ 1,828,080$ 11,388,08_O0

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010

2011-2012

Water and Sewerage Refunding Revenue Bonds~ Series 2001A
$ 155,000 $ 886,355 $ 1,041,355 3.13

195,000 881,511 1,076,511 3.38
195,000 874,930 1,069,930 3.60
205,000 867,910 1,072,910 3.70
175,000 860,325 1,035,325 3.80

15,355,000 3,194,1.00 18,549,100 4.00-4.40
4,170,000 395,040 4,565,040 4.50- 4.70$. 20,450,000 ‘ $ 7,960,171.

$ .... 28,410,171

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010

2011-2015
2016-2018
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B~s~s-~e Aedv~d~% ¢o~th~e4l
1-~eve~e ~¢r~a Debt Coupon

June 30, Principal interest Total Rate

2006 $ 875,000 $ 1,300,987 $ 2,175,987 2.50
2007 920,000 1,279,112 2,199,112 2.50
2008 1,000,000 1,256,112 2,256,112 2.50
2009 255,000 1,231,112 1,486,112 2.50
2010 1,224,738 1,224,738 --

2011-2015 400,000 6,123,688 6,523,688 0.00-3.50
2016-2020 11,300,000 5,115,663 16,415,663 3.63- 5.00
2021-2025 14,085,000 2,131,313 16,216,313 5.00

$ 28,835,000 $ 19,662,725 $ 48,497,725

So]~d Waste I~ar~a~er~e~£ A~ther~v ~eve~e Bo~ds~ Sez~es 11994
2006 $ I~235,000 $ 37,359 $ 1,272,359 6.05

$ 1,235,000 $ 37,359 $ ~,272,359

]L HCtes ~y~b~e

The Water and Sewerage System has entered into agreements with the Georgia Env~rouraenta[ Facilities Authority (GEFA) whereby
the System receives a loan for each agreement to assist in various pre-approved construction projects. Notes payable to the Georgia
Environmental Facilities Authority are as follows:

The $226,569 note payable to GEFA, with quarterly payments of $4,728,
including principal and interest at 6.8%. $ 107,536

The $707,006 note payable to GEFA, with quarterly payments of $15,235,
including principal and interest at 6.0%.

178,728

The $646,607 note payable to GEFA, with quarterly payments of $13,158,
including principal and interest at 5.3%.

The $1,000,000 note payable to GEFA, with quarterly payments of $21,985,
including principal and interest at 6.25%.

188,59t

452,109

The $1,569,027 note payable to GEFA, under the State of Georgia
Revolving Loan Fund Program with quarterly payments of $23,845,
including principal and interest at 2.0%.

662,737

$ 1,589,701
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Note 7 - Long-term and short-term obligations (continued)

The annual requirements of principal and interest to amortize each of the County’s outstanding notes payable as of June 30, 2005 are
as follows:

Notes Payable
Year ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total

2006 $ 250,585 $ 65,216 $ 315,801
2007 262,493 53,308 315,801
2008 275,064 40,737 315,801
2009 241,944 28,153 270,097
2010 183,494 18,735 202,229

2011-2013 376,121 14~801 390,922
$ 1,589,701 $ 220,950 $ 1,810,651

F.. Refunding and Advance Refunding

In 1993, the Water and Sewerage System refunded the Series 1988, Water and Sewerage Refunding Revenue Bonds with the
$10,735,000 Series 1993, Water and Sewerage Refunding Revenue Bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are no longer a liability of
the System. The Series 1993 Bonds were paid in full during the fiscal year in connection with the issuance of the $28,940,000 Water
and Sewerage Revenue Bonds, Series 2004.

In 1996, the Water and Sewerage System advance refunded the Series 1991A, Water and Sewerage Revenue Bonds with the
$6,970,000 Series 1996A, Water and Sewerage Refunding Revenue Bonds. The System issued bonds to provide resources to purchase
direct obligations of the United States of America which were placed in an irrevocable escrow account with aa escrow agent to
defense the maturities.

The escrow obligations, together with the earnings thereon, were sufficient to pay the redemption price of the bonds on June 1,200 I.
As a result, the refunded bonds are no longer a liability of the System and have no outstanding principal at June 30, 2005.

On September 26, 2001, the County issued Water and Sewerage Refunding Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
$12,155,000, with interest rates ranging from 3% - 4.25%, to refund $11,850,000 of outstanding 1992 Water and Sewerage Revenue
Bonds with interest rates r.atiging from 5.7% to 6.25%. The net proceeds of $12,022,027 (after payment of $190,901 of underwriting
fees and other issuaace costs) plus an additional $430,053 of the 1992 Series sinking fund monies were used to repay the 1992 Water
and Sewerage Revenue Bonds.

The current refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisitiou price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $955,029.
This difference, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from bonds payable, is being charged to operations
through the year 2012 using the straight-line method, which is not significantly different from the effective-interest method. The
County completed the refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 11 years by approximately $1.3 million and to
obtain aa economic gain (difference between present values of the old and new debt service payments) of approximately $1.4 million.

On October 17, 2001, the County issued Water and Sewerage Refunding Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
$21,020,000 with interest rates ranging from 3% to 4.7%, to advance refund a portion ($10,395,000) of outstanding 1996 Water and
Sewerage Revenue Bonds with interest rates ranging from 5.15% to 5.7%, and to advance refund a portion ($8,510,000) 
outstanding 2000 Water and Sewerage Revenue Bonds with interest rates ranging from 5% to 6.25%. The net proceeds of
$20,629,262 (after payment of $307,173 of underwriting fees and other issuance costs) plus an additional $366,112 of the debt service
fund monies were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow
agent to provide for the refunded portions’ debt service payments on the 1996 Series bonds and the 2000 Series.bonds. As a result, the
refunded portions of the 1996 Series bonds and the 2000 Series bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds
have been reduced by the refunded portions.
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The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacqulsition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of
$2,512,970. This difference, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from bonds payable, is being charged
to operations through the year 2018 using the straight-fine method, which is not significantly different from the effective-interest
method. The advance refunding increased the County’s torn1 debt sevdee payments over the next 24 years by approximately $775,000
and resulted in an economic loss (difference between present values of the old and new debt service payments) of approximately $2.5
million guaranteed under an insurance policy issued with the delivery of the Series 1994 Bonds by Muulcip~l Bond ~avestors
Assurance Corporation.

On November 1, 2004, included in the Series 2004 Water and Sewerage Revenue Bonds, the County issued Water and Sewerage
Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $3,155,000 with an interest rate of 2.5% to refund $3,~25,000 of outstanding
1993 Water and Sewerage Refunding Revenue Bonds with an interest rate of 5.55%. The net proceeds associated with the refunding
bonds of $3,139,453 (after payment of $15,547of underwriting fees and other issuance costs) plus an additional $72,266 of the debt
service fund monies were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an escrow fund with aa
escrow agent to provide sufficient money to pay when due the debt service on the Series 1993 refunded bonds and to call the Series
1993 refunded bonds on December l, 2004. The unreftmded portion of the Series 1993 bonds in the principal amount of $830,000
matured on December 1, 2004. As a result, the Series 1993 bonds are no longer a liability of the System and have no outstanding
principal at Sune 30, 2005.

The ctwrent refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $86,308.
This difference, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from bonds payable, is being charged to operations
through the yeaz 2007 using the straight-line method, which is not significantly different from the effective-interest ancthod. The
County eomp~e~ed the refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 5 years by approxima.tely $233,156 and to
obtain an economic gain (difference between present values of the old and new debt service payments) of approximately $277,133.

The County has entered into agreements for the lease of certain machinery and equipment. The term of each agreement provides
options to purchase the machinery and equipment at any time during the period of the lease. The leases meet the criteria of capital
leases as defined by Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, "Accounting for Leases", which defines a capital lease
generally as one which transfers benefits and risk of ownership to the lessee.

The capitalized leases at June 30, 2005 are shown in the financial statements as follows:

Business-type
Activities

Machinery and equipment

The following is a schedule by year of future lease payments:

$ 323,958

Year Ending Business-type

June 30, Activities

2006 $ 122,187

122,187
(2,073)

120,114

Total minimum lease payments
Amount representing interest

Present value of minimum lease payments
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H. Changes in long-term liabilities

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the year ended June 30, 2005:

Governmental activities:
Bonds payable:

General Obligation Bonds:
Series 1998
Series 2004
Deferred amounts:

...... For bond issuance’premiums

Total bonds payable

BegLrming Ending Current

Balances Additions Reductions Balances Portion

$ 27,470,000 $ $ (495,000)$ 26,975,000 $ 580,000
22,750,000 22,750,000

- (308,064) 2,156,447 1,848,383

27,470,000 22,441,936. 1,661,447 51,573,383 580,000

Other liabilities:
Compensated absences 1,262,940 1,290,254 (1,100,565) 1,452,629 1,100,000

Governmental activities long-term liabilities $ 28,732,940 $ 23.,732,190 $, 560,882 $ 53,026,012 $ 1,680,000

Business-type activities:
Revenue debt:

Water and Sewerage Reftmding Bonds:
Series 1993
Series 1996
Series 1996A
Series 2000
Series 2001
Series 2001A
Series 2004
Deferred amounts:

For bond issuance premiums
For bond issuance discotmts
For deferred loss on refunding

SWMA Revenue Bonds, Series 1994
Total revenue debt

$ 3,955,000 $ - $ (3,955,000) - $ --
75,000 - (35,000) 40,000 40,000

5,845,000 (765,000) 5,080,000 795,000
15,865,000 (300,000) 15,565,000 400,000
10,295,000 - (735,000) 9,560,000 800,000
20,600,000 - (150,000) 20,450,000 155,000

28,940,000 (105,000) 28,835,000 875,000

45,274 (71,930) 1,407,150 1,380,494 -

(93,372) 19,750 (73,622) -

(3,076,497) (86,309) 345,270 (2,817,536) -

2,375,000 - (1,140,000) 1,235,000 !,235,000

55,885,405 28,781,761 (5,412,830) 79,254,336 4,300,000.

Other liabilities:
Water and Sewerage Notes Payable

to GEFA
Capital leases
Compensated absences
Liability for landfill closure and

postclosure care costs

Total other liabilities

Business-type activities long-term liabilities

1,829,002 - (239,301) 1,589,701 250,585

167,782 - (47,668) 120,114 120,114
270,669 201,436 (200,002) 272,103 272,103

10,144,825 706,751 - 10,851,576 -

12,412,278 908,187 (486,971) 12,833,494 642,802

68,297,683 $ 29,689,94___._88 $_____((5,899,801) $ 92,087,830§ 4,942,802
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Hote 7 o Lo~g-ter~. a~a ~hozt-tez~u ~gatioa~ (c~t~ued)

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, tong-term liabilities for them are included as part of
the above totals for governmental activities. At year end, $6,402 of haternal service funds compensated absences is included in the
above amounts. Also, for the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund.

L D~crete~y ~re~e~te~ eem/~e~e~t ~t~

~eve~e~ent A~tho~ T~g~Me ~eve~ue ~d~, Ser~e~ ~993
During 1986, the Development Authority of Columbia County issued $1,120,000 Industrial Development P~eve~ue ~onds, Series
1986..During 1992, the Development Authority obtained a loan with a bank which it used to pay offthe Series 1986"Bonds. During
1993, the Development Authority issued $7,515,000 Development Authority of Columbia County, Georgia, ~ndustr~al Park Taxable
Revenue Bonds, Series 1993. A portion of the proceeds in the amount of $705,171 was used to pay offthe bank ~.oan mentioned
above. The remaining proceeds were used for various improvements to the existing industrial park sites. The improvements kucluded
the provision of water, sewerage, drainage and similar facilities and transportation, power and communication facilities which are
incidental to the use of such land as industrial parks, except with respect to such facilities, does not include the provision of structures
or buildings. The Development Authority has the right to acquire up to 100 acres of additional land contiguous to the 284 acres
fronting on Lewiston and Wrightsboro Roads, and to develop such additional land as part of that industrial site.

The Series 1993 Bonds are limited, special obligations of the Authority and are secured by a letter of credit ~ssued by SunTrust,
Atlanta, Georgia, and from payments received under an Intergovemmental Agreement for the development and marketing of an
industrial park between.the Development Authority and Columbia County.

Interest on the Series 1993 Bonds is to be paid monthly. The interest zate is adjusted weekly in connection w~th the bond market
fluctuations, which was 3.25% at June 30, 2005. Principal is due on March 1 of each year. At Itme 30, 2005, the outstanding balance
of thin Revenue Bond amounted to $3,320,000.

The annual requirements of principal and interest to amortize the Development Authority’s outstanding revenue debt as of
June 30, 2005 are as follows:

’ ~e~e~ ~.993
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2006 $ 625,000 $ 20,313 $ 645,313
2007 665,000 21,613 686,613
2008 715,000 23,23fl 73 ~,238
2009 770,000 25,025 795,025
2010 545~000 17,713 562,713

$ 3,320~000..$ 107,902 $ 3,427,902
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Bartram Trail CDC, Inc., Certificates of Participation, Series 2003
During the year ended June 30, 2004, Bartram Trail CDC, Inc. issued $8,800,000 Certificates of Participation, Series 2003, for the
purpose of construction of a golf course facility. The certificates have a stated maturity of July 1, 2032, and are subject to mandatory
sinking fund redemption, in order of maturity, in part by lot on July 1, beginning July 1, 2008, at a redemption price equal to 100% of
the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.

Interest on the Series 2003 COP is to be paid semi-annually on July 1 and January 1 of each year, beginning after January 1, 2004.
For a portion of the certificates ("promissory note one"), in the amount of $7,920,000, the interest rate is 5.5% through June 30, 2010,
and then will be adjusted periodically to the five-year United States Treasury Note Rate plus 1.75%, but in no event shall the interest
rate exceed 12% per annum. At June 30, 2005, the outstanding balance of promissory note one was $7,920,000. For the remaining
portion of the certificates ("promissory note two"), in the amount of $880,000, the interest rate is fixed at 10%. For promissory note
one and note two, principal is due on Iuly 1 of each year.

Bartram Trail CDC~ Inc.
Certificates of Participation

Series 2003
Year ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total

2006 $ $ 523,600$ 523,600
2007 523,600 523,600
2008 162,000 523,600 685,600
2009 171,000 514,015 685,015
2010 181,000 503,845 684,845

2011-2015 1,082,000 2,343,975 3,425,975
2016-2020 1,445,000 1,981,165 3,426,165
2021-2025 1,928,000 1,497,100 3,425,100
2026-2030 2,574,000 851,305 3,425,305
2031-2032 1,257,000 113,405 1,370~405

$ 8,800,~ $ 9,375,610 $ 18,175610

Bartram Trail CDC, Inc., Subordinated Promissory Note
During the year ended June 30, 2004, Euehee Creek Investors, Inc. issued to Bartram Trail CDC, Inc. a promissory note in the
principal amount of $1,500,000 for the purchase of approximately 200 acres of land, on which a golf course facility shall be
constructed. This note is subordinate to the $8,800,000 Certificates of Participation, Series 2003. Until all amounts due under the
Certificates of Participation agreement have been paid in full, no payment shall be required on this note, although the note may be
prepaid in whole or in part at anytime without penalty. The principal balance outstanding shall bear interest at the fixed rate of 4%
per annum. A total of 36 monthly payments will be made commencing 30 days after the final payment is made on the Certificates of
Participation, with the final payment being due on or before July 30, 2035. The payment amount for the first 35 payments shall be
equal to the sum of 1/120 of the outstanding principal balance due and 1/120th of any accrued and unpaid interest as of the
e0mmencement date. The final payment will be a balloon payment consisting of the remaining outstanding principal and interest due.
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The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions for the discretely presented component units for the year ended
June 30, 2005:

Devclopmem Authority
Revenue debt:

Taxable Revenue bonds, Series 1993-

Total ~evenue debt

Development Authority long-term liabilities

Board of Health
Other liabilities:

Compensated absences

Total other liabilities

Board of Health long-term liabilities

Bartram Trail CDG
Revenue debt:

Series 2003 Certificates of Participation
Less: Bond issue discount

Total revenue debt

Note payable to Euchee Creek investors
Bartrana Trail CDC long-term liabilities

Beginning Ending Current

Balances Additions Reductions Balances Portion

$ 3,g95,000 $ -

$ (575,000) $ 3,320,000 $ 625,000"

$ 3,895,000 $ $ (575,000) $ 3,320,000 $ 625,000

$ 3,895,000. $ - $ (575,009) $ 3,320,000 .$. 625,000.

$ 79,095 $ $ (58) $ 79,037 $ 79,037

79,095 - (58) 79,037 79,037

$ 79,09_5 $ - $ (58} $ 79,037 $ 79,037

$ g,g0o,00o $ - $ $ 8,800,000 $
(95,700) 3,300 (92,400) .

8~704,300 3,300 8,707,600

1,500,000 - 1~500~000.

$ 10,204,300 $... - $ 3,300 $ 10,207~600.
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Note 8 - Deferred/unearned revenues

The balance of deferred revenues in the fund financial statements (includes both the deferred and unearned amounts disclosed below)
and unearned revenues in the government-wide financial statements at year-end are composed of the following elements:

Taxes receivable net of allowance, unavailable - General Fund
Taxes receivable net of allowance, unavailable - Special Revenue Fund

Taxes receivable net of allowance, unavailable - Debt Service Fund
Rental income received in advance of being earned - General Fund
Rental income received in advance of being earned - Special Revenue Fund

Deferred Unearned

Revenue Revenue

$ 244,587 $
27,178
19,903

- 297
58,761

$ 291,668 $ 59,058

Note 9 - Landfill closure and postclosure care cost

State and Federal laws and regulations require that the County place a final cover on its landfill when it stops accepting waste and to
perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure and postclosure care
costs will be paid only near or after the date the landfill stops accepting waste, the County is required to report a portion of these costs
as operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. After the initial calculation of the
current closure and posteIosure care costs, these costs are required to be adjusted annually for the effects of inflation or deflation,
technology, or applicable laws or regulations.

Closed unlined cell
The estimated liabihty for landfill closure and postclosure care costs of the closed unlined cell is $1,429,064 which is based on 100%
usage (f’tlled) of the cell. The Countyno longer accepts waste at the cell location.

The County expects that future costs will be paid from earnings in the Solid Waste Management Fund.

D cell
The estimated liability for landfill closure and postclosure care costs of the D cell is $9,422,512 as of June 30, 2005, which is based on
97% usage (ftiled) of the D cell. Estimated total cost of the D cell closure and postclosure care is $9,713,930 and will be accrued
ratably based on the usage over ten years, which is the estimated life of the D ceil, beginning with the fiscal year ended Iune 30, 1996.

Note 10 - Conduit debt obligations

From time to time, the Development Authority of Columbia County has issued tax exempt industrial revenue bonds to provide
financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be
in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payments received on the
underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private sector entity
served by the bond issuance. Neither the Development Authority, the County, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is
"obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying
f’mancial statements.

As of June 30, 2005, there were five series of Development Authority tax exempt industrial revenue bonds outstanding, with an
aggregate principal amount of $57,568,200.
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Hate 2~. - ]i~d.~k ~a~age~er~t

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and
natural disasters for which the government is a member of a public entity risk pool. Liabilities are reported when ~t is probable that a
loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. An excess coverage insurance policy covers individual
claims. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated considering
the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends including fiequency and amount of pay-outs and other economic and social
factors. As of 3une 30, 2005, the County had recorded no liability for claims.

The County has joined together with other municipalities in the state as part of the Association of County Commissioners of Georgia
Interlocal Risk Management Agency Property and Liability IJ3surance Fund (ACCG-IRMA) and the ACCG C~oup Self-Insurance
Workers Compensation Fund (ACCG-GSIWCF), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and
insurance program for member local governments.

As part of these risk pools, the County is obligated to pay all contra%utions and assessments as prescribed by the pools, to cooperate
with the pool’s agent and attorneys, to follow loss reduction procedures established by the funds, and to report as promptly as
possible, and in accordance with any coverage descriptions issued, all incidents which could result in the funds being required to pay
any claim of loss. The County is also to allow the pool’s agents and attorneys to represent the County in investigation, settlement
discussions and all levels of litigation arising out of any claim made against the County within the scope of loss protection furnished
by the funds.

The funds are to defend and protect the members of the funds against liability or loss as prescribed in the member government contract
and in accordance with the worker’s compensation law of Georgia. The funds are to pay all costs taxed against members in any legal
proceeding defended by the members, all interest aecrtfing after enhBr of judgment, and all expenses incurred for investigation,
negotiation or defense.

As a participant in the ACCG-GSIWCF, which also provides claims administration and loss control services, the County has a
$200,000 loss retention. This program is accounted for in the General Fund. Premiums are paid into the General Ftmd by all other
funds and are available to pay claims, claim reserves and administrative costs of the program. These interfund premiums are used to
reduce the amount of claims expenditure reported in the General Fund.

Changes in the balances of worker’s compensation claims during fiscal years 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

2005 2004

Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year
Incurred claims
Claim payments

$ - $
170,104 M8,284

(170,104) 018,284)

Unpaid claims, end of year $ $

During 1994, Columbia County entered into an agreement with the ACCG-IRMA to provide coverage for property, automobile,
general liability, law enforcement liability, public officials liability, crime and boiler and machinery exposures. The County has a loss
retention of $50,000 per occurrence. The County separately budgets funds for claims for which no governmental immunity exists, and
other claims which the County deems appropriate for payment. This program is accounted for in the Risk Maxmgemer~t Fund, an
Internal Service Fund.
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Note 11 - Risk management (continued)

Changes in the balances of property and liability claims during fiscal years 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

2005 2004

Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year
Incurred claims
Claim payments

7,574 $ 3,686
490,587 338,022

4479,978) (334,133)

Unpaid claims, end of yea¢ $ 18,183 $ 7,574

The County made no reduction in its insurance coverage during the year ended June 30, 2005. During the past three years claims have
not exceeded insurance coverage. The County believes that the insurance coverage is adequate.

The County accounts for the financial operations of a self-insured employee group health program in an Internal Service Fund.
Specific stop loss coverage in the amount of $50,000 per covered individual is maintained to reduce the exposure from catastrophic
claims. A third party administrator is employed to process claims for the program. Claims "incurred but not reported" are accounted
for as accrued expenses in the Internal Service Fund in accordance with FASB Statement No. 5.

Changes in the balances of medical claims during the fiscal years 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

2005 2004

Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year
Incurred claims
Claim payments

$ 254,393 $ 182,434
3,320,023 3,080,390

(3,278,859) (3,008,432)

Unpaid claims, end of year $ 295,557 $ 254,393

Contingent liabilities
Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the Federal
government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The
amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the County
expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The County is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, it is the opinion
of the County’s management and counsel that resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the County.
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Note 22 - ~e~slo~ ~Ii~s

]De~r~ed Cor~tzibut~er~ ?~a~
The County and its qualified employees participate in the CohmabJa County Money Purchase Retirement Plan. Columbia County
executed an Adoption Agreement (restated and signed 12/17/02) with Government Employee Benefits Corporation of Georgia
(GEBCorp) electing to become a sponsoring employer of the ACCG 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan for Employees of Columbia
County by adopting Plan and Trust agreements in full. GEBCorp provides at least 15 investment options covering a variety of asset
classes ranging from aggressive growth equity mutual funds to bond mutual funds to stable value and money marke~ funds.
Employees can invest in one or all of the funds.

Compensation as defined by the Adoption Agreement is the total amount of all payments, direct or indirect, made by Columbia
County to an Employee (working at least 1,000 hours per year) for services rendered to the Employer. Compensation includes before-
tax or salary deferral contributions made under Code Sections 125, 402(g), 457 or 414(h) to the Plan or other plans, on behalf 
Participant for such Plan Year. Plan provisions and contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the Columbia
County Board of Commissioners.

At June 30, 2005, 98% or 784 of the County’s 800 employees were participants in the defined contribution plan.

The payroll for all employees for the year ended 3une 30, 2005, amounted to $26,577,900. All regular employees who work more
than 1,000 hours during the calendar year are eligible to participate in the plan. The payroll for covered employees ~.mounted ~o
$26,496,645 for the year ended June 30, 2005~ During the year ended June 30, 2005 the County contributed $1,660,273 to the defined
contn’bufion plan, or approximately 6% of the covered payroll. The defined contribution plan assets at Sune 30, 2005, are ~s follows:

Money Funds $ 3,615,554
Mutual Funds 10,017,502

Total assets $ 13,633,056

Plan assets are reported at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

The maximum contribution by the County to an employee’s retirement account is g%, which consists of (a) a base araount equal to
4% of the annual salary of an employee plus 00) a matching contribution equal to one half the amount an employee voluntarily
contributes into the deferred compensation plan, up to a maximum of 4% of the employee’s annual salary. The vesting schedule for
the employer portion of the contribution is as follows:

Year I 0%
Year 2 25%
Year 3 50%
Year 4 75%
Year 5 100%

Defezzed C~rnpe~s~t~o~ ~?~
The County has adopted a deferred compensation plan, the Columbia County Deferred Compensation Plan, in accordance with
Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan allows any employee participant to voluntarily defer up to 25% of the
participant’s gross compensation not to exceed $14,000 per year. All administration costs of the plan are deducted from the
participants’ accounts. Benefit payments are payable upon termination of employment, unforeseeable emergency, retirement or death.
The Custodial Account Agreement requires the County set aside assets and income from the plan in trust for the exclusive benefit of
the participants and their beneficiaries. The County is in compliance with the agreement.
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Note 12 - Pension plans (continued)

The County believes that it has no liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an
ordinary prudent investor.

Investments are managed by the Plan Administrator under one of three investment options, or a combination thereof. The available
options include fixed annuity, variable annuity and universal life insurance. The choice of the investment option(s) is made by the
.participant.

At June 30, 2005, 79% or 631 of the County’s 800 employees were participants in the deferred compensation plan.

The employees of the County contributed $1,669,869 to the deferred compensation plan during the year ended June 30, 2005.

The County has amended its plan to comply with the requirements of subsection (g) of Internal Revenue Code Section 457 and it has
adopted GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred
Compensation Plans. All assets and income of the plan desenq3ed in subsection(b)(6) ~e held in trust for the exclusive benefit of 
participants and their beneficiaries.

Note 13 - Construction commitments

The County has active construction projects as 0f June 30, 2005. The projects include construction of water facilities, a County library
and office expansion, road improvements, and recreational facilities. At year end the County’s commitments with contractors are as
follows:

Remaining
Project Spent-to-Date Commitment.
Blanchard Plant Expansion Phase I & II
Main Library and County Office Additions
Recreational Facilities and Parks
Road improvement construction
Road paving construction

Total

$ 11,225,714 $ 682,624
9,339,904 6,487,931
1,524,845 562,996
2,356,325 1,877,956
3,412,264 638~870

$ 27,859,052 $ 10~250,377

Note 14 - Hotel/motel lodging tax

Columbia County has levied a 5% lodging tax pursuant to Official Code of Georgia Annotated (O.C.G.A.) 48-13-51; The County has
entered into a contract with the Augusta Metropolitan Convention and Visitors Bureau, Inc. (AMCVB) to be the: principal provider 
convention and tourist promotion services. The County has received an audit report from the AMCVB for expenditure of the lodging
tax monies, which were used for the promotion of tourism as required by O.C.G.A. 48-13-51. The receipts and disbursements for
these monies are accounted for in a nonmajor special revenue fund, the Hotel/Motel Fund. A summary of the transactions for the year
ended June 30, 2005 follows:

Lodging tax receipts $ 349,724

Disbursements:
Paid to AMCWB (43%) $ 151,351
Other (42%) 145,532

Total disbursements $ 296,883
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Under Georgia law, the County, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the Central Savannah River Area, is a member of the
Central Sav~mah River Area Regional Development Center (RDC) and is required to pay annual dues thereto. During its year ended
3une 30, 2005, the County paid $61,039 in such dues. Membership in the RDC is required by the O.C.G.A. Section 50-3-34 ~vhich
provides for the organizational structure of the RDC in Georgia. The RDC Board membership includes the chief elected official of
each county and municipality of the area. O.C.G.A. 50-3-39.1 provides that the member governments are liable for any debts or
obligations of the RDC. Separate financial statements may be obtained from:

Central Savannah River Area
Regiona~ Development Center
Augusta, Georgia 30903

Hote ~t6 - $iE~fieant eomtlnsenei~

Federal and State assisted orograms
The County has received proceeds from several federal and state grants. Periodic audits of these grants are required and certain costs
may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant agreements. Such audits could result ~ the refund of grant
monies to the grantor agencies. Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in
the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant znonies.

Claims and jud~tents
qFhe County is a defendant in various lawsuits. In the opinion of the County’s management and the County attorney, the ultimate
effect of these matters ~ not have a material adverse effect on the financ~l condition of the County.

Arbitrage
The County’s bond issues are subject to federal arbitrage regulations, and the County has elected to review its potential arbitrage
liability annually on the bond issue dates. The arbitrage rebate payments are payable on the fifth anniversary of the bond issue date
and every fifth year subsequent to that date. Although the actual amount to be paid is not presently determinable, the County believes
that arbitrage payables are not significant.
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, GEORGIA

General Fund by Object

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Taxes - property
Property tax
Motor vehicle tax and penalties
Mobile home tax
Timber tax
Interest and penalties

Taxes - sales
Sales tax

Taxes - other
Occupation tax
Real estate transfer tax
Alcohol tax
Recording intangibles
Cablevision
Other

Licenses and permits
Alcohol licenses
Land disturbing permit
Other

Iatergovernmental
General overhead
Juvenile Court
Emergency Services
Roads and Bridges
Public Transit

Charges for services
Commissions
Sheriff
Recreation
Clerk of Superior Court
Probate Court
Magistrate Court
Wildwood Park
Planning and Development
Other

Fines and forfeitures
Clerk of Superior Court
Probate Court
Magfistrate Court
Other

Final
Budget

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

15,445,747 $
2,327,787

88,269
34,377

150,000
18,046,180

, ,,101778,523

15,945,344 $
2,087,228

73,081
38,100

1261272
18,270,025

11,273,425

499,597
(240,559)
(15,188)

3,723
(23,728)
223,845

494,902

97

700,000
250,000
800,000
750,000
350,000

2,850,000

245,000
40,000
15,800

300,800

1,323,334
57,725

533,677
644,850
97,054

2,656,640

1,100,000
85,462

336,000
450,000
100,000
70,000
78,000

189,800
125~000

2,5341262

500,000
1,200,000

150,000
35,000

1,885,000

780,475
269,915
849,223
906,377
489,564

12,018
3,307,572

286,992
28,888
14,883

330,763 -

1,422,569
51,043

542,429
697,398
78,781

2,792,220

1,224,596
126,686
348,845
656,152
52,000

113,599
115,991
249,933
98,506

2,986,308 .

525,946
885,965
108,443
43,893

, 1,564,247

80,475
19,915
49,223

156,377
139,564
12,018

457,572

41,992
(11,112)

(917).
29,963.

99,235
(6,682)

8,752
52,548

(18,273),
135,580

124,596
41,224

"12,845
206,152
(48,000)

43,599
37,991
60,133

(26,494)
452,046

25,946
(314,035)

(41,557)
8z893

(320,753).



Contributions and donations
Developc¢ ~eim~urse~ts
Donations

Oth~

Rental
Other

]Z~emd~rPm
G~¢~ ~ov~
Board of Commissioners
Personal service
Operating
Capital ~provements

Finance
¯ Personal service
Operating

Procuremeat/Distdbution
Personal service
Operating
Capital improvements

Information Technology
Personal service
Operating
Capital improvements

County Administrator
Personal service
Operating

Final

, Budget

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget -

]Positive
(Negative)

$ 301,200 $ 382,082 $ 80,882

10,000
12,000
22,000

190,892
3,496,117
3,687,009

43,061,614 $

12,903
3,422

16,325

185,476
281,258
466,734

41,389,701 $

2,903
(8,578)
(5,6,75).

(5,416)
(3,214,8.59).
(3,220,275)

, (1.,671~913).

176,948
759,320

4,000
940,268

183,576 $
744,271

I0,000
937,847

(6,628)
15,049
(6,900)

2,421

432,467
117,085
549,552

440,300
107,356
547,656

(7,833)
9,729
1,896..

287,641
32t,374
609,015

286,706
322,274
608,980

935
(900),

35

325,287
94,376
15,000

434,663

327,032
99,868
6,127

433,027

(1,745)
(5,492)
.8,873.
1,636

919,525
618,352
625,080

2,162,957

944,263
1,087,830

130,864
2,162,957

(24,738)
(469,478)

494,216

190,677
25,311

215,988

196,642
19,346

215,988

(5,965)
5,965
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, GEORGIA

General Fund by Object - Continued

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For .the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Expenditures .(Continued)
General government (Continued)
Tax Commissioner
Personal service
Operating
Capital improvements

Tax Assessor
Personal service
Operating

Engineering Services
Personal service

Operating
Capital improvements

Board of Elections
Personal service
Operating

Management Services

Personal service
Operating

Total general government

Judicial system
Superior Court

Personal service
Operating

Probate Court
Personal service
Operating
Capital improvemcnts

Juvenile Court/Youth
Personal service
Operating

Magistrate Court
Personal service
Operating

Final

,, Budget

Actual
Amount

Yariance with
Final Budget -

Positive
~egati~e)

$ 919,739
259,651

5,000
1,1841390

$ 914,153
237,355

1,1511508

5,586
22,296
5,000

, 32,882

707,572
137,1,43
844,715

687,562
122,860

, , 810~22

20,010
14,283
34,293

640,408
90,555
15,700

746,663

623,303
70,222
14,529

708,054

17,105
20,333
1,171

38,609

130,361
306~516
436,877

136,713
300,119
436,832

(6,352)
6,397.

45

123,577
.1,321,711
1,445,288

125,695

. .. 1,319,206
1,444,901

(2,118)

,.2~505
387

..9,570,376 9,458,172 112,204.

653,695
494,346

1,148,041

662,627
461,894

1,124,521

(8,932)
32,452
23,520

507,314 512,752 (5,438)
122,621 78,301 44,320

5,000 5,000
634,935 591,053 , 43,882

327,518
106,700
434,218

571,747
107,247

.. . 678,994

280,845
153,373
434,218

46,673
(46,673)

°

582,294
96,692

, 678,986,

(10,547)
10,555

8
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District Attorney
Operating

Total judicial system

Public safety
Sheriff
Personal service
Operating
Capital improvements

Emergency Services

Porson~l service

Capital hnprovemcnts

Personal service
Operating

Emergency Medical Service
Opernting

Animal Care and Control
Personal service
Operating
Capital improvem~ts

Coroner
Personal service
Operating

Final
Budget

Actual
Amount

Va~nce v~h

Positive
(Negative)

375,000

.. 3,271,188

, 374,081

...3,202,859

919

68,329.

8,032,409
1,794,612

819,453
1,0,646,474

8,162,905
1,792,810

559,394

¯ .. 10,515,109

(130,496)
1,802

260,05,9
131,365.

179,946
147~55
462,319
789,720

180,966
134,851
458,643
774~60

(1,o2o)
12~o4
3,676

1s,2#o

4,496,882
1,591,940
6,088,822

4,392,642
1,571,041
5,963,683

t04,240
20,899
125,1.39

5...00,000 500,000

412,760
96,260
64,000

573,920

48,307
43,570
91,877

410,115
116,315
27,799

554,229

2,645
(20,055)

36,201
18,791

53,058
32,554
85,612

(4,751)
11~16
6,265

Total public safety , 18,689~913 18,393,093 296,820
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General Fund by Object - Continued

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Expenditures (Continued)
Public works
Roads and Bridges
Personal service
Operating

Fleet Services
Personal service
Operating
Capital improvements

Facility Maintenance
Personal service
Operating

Total public works

Health and welfare
Public Health
Operating
Capital improvements

Family and Children Services
Operating

Senior Center
Personal service
Operating

Public Transit
Personal service
Operating
Capital improvements

Total health and welfare

$

Final
Budget Amount

Varianc~ with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

1,701,751 $
7691885

2,4711636

1,631,529 $
812,209

. . 21443,738

70,222
(42,324)

277898

446,220 439,019 7,201
119,799 106,130 13,669
21,000 . 411000 (20,0.00)

5871019 . 586,149 870

333,484
310,604
644,088

321,685
322,324
644,009

11,799
(11,720)

79

31702,743 3,673,896 ,281847

416,228
6,500

422,728

70,702

419,195

419,195

70,561

(2,967)
6,500
3,533

141

238,139
157,140
395,279

119,638
40,348
51,000

210,986

1,099,695

214,171
164,482
378,653

23,968
(7,342)
I6,626

132,011
38,098
40,794

210,903

(12,373)
.~2,250
10,296

83

1,079,312 20,383
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Culture and recreation
Recreation
Personal service
Operating
Capital improvcm~ts

Wildwood Park
Personal service
G’p~mting
Capital improvements

Libraries
Personal service
(2~r~ting

Comnumity Services
Personal service
Operating

Total culture and recreation

Housing and development
Extension Service
Personal service
Operating
Capital improvements

~orestr~

Operating

Geographic Information Systems
Operating
Operating
Capital improvements

Planning and Development
Personal service
Operating

Code Compliance
Personal service
Operating

Economic Development
Operating

Total housing and development

Final
Budget

Actual
Amount

Variance wi~
Fkml Budget o

Positive
(Negative] __

1,024,429 $
653,054
34,541

1,712,024

1,018,577 $
638,573
34,042

1,691,192

5,852
14,481

499
20,832

35,341
67,142
8,659

111,142

35,517
45,347

8,659
89,523

(176)
21,795

21,619

469,107
403,825
872,932

466,579
4o5A56
872,035,

2,528
fi.,631)

897

161,139
30,465

191,604

~62,481
29,028

191,509

(1,342)
1,437

95

2,887,702 2,844,259, 43,443

68,342
67,933
5,625,

141,900

8,390

64,380
65,748

130,128

7,222

3,962
2,185
5,625

11,772

1,168..

54,524
205,695

38,632
298,851

64,591
204,261
29,288

298,140

(10,067)
1,434
9,344

711

474,397
165,226
639,623

440,088
153,988
594,076

34,309
11,238
45,547

88,326

3,700
92,026

88,543
3,454

91,997

(217)
246
29

951,796 930,717 21,079

2,132,586 2,052,280 80,306
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General Fund by Object - Concluded

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Expenditures (Continued)

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Sate of property
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other sources
over expenditures and other uses

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

Final
Budget

Actual
Amount

$ 41,354,203 $ 40,703z871

. ..1,707~411 685,8 ,30

103,500
298,496

(2,I09,407)
(1,707,411)

74,165
194,000

(2~109,407)
(1,841,242)

(l,155,412)

"16,596,132

$, 15,440,720

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative) 

$ 650,332

(1,021,581)

(29,335)
(104,496)

. (133,831)

,, ~1,155,412)

NOTE: Expenditures for capital outlay are included within the appropriate fimefion in the preeeeding schedule.
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Columbia County, Georgia

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2005

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued compensated absences
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds
Accrued interest

Total liabilRies

Fund balances:¯
Reserved for encumbrances
geserved for inventories/prepaid items
Reserved for debt service
Unreserved, undesignated

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Capital Projects Funds

Special Local Capital Road/
Special Option Sales Drainage Airport

Revenue Tax Fund Projects ’ Authority
Funds 1996-2000 Fund Fund

$ 1,315,889 $ 1,800,544
101,295
30,884

237,615
4,162,491

12,916
$ 5,861,090 $ 1,800,544

$ 278,769 $ 27,756
32,311
15,967
85,939

619,740

$ $
.

442,309
1,225,699 350

$ 1,668,008 $ 350

$ 33,762

1,032,726 27,756 33,762

208,824 254,850 178,433
12,916

4,606,624 1,517,938 1,455,813
¯ 4,828,364 1,772,788

$ 5,861,090 $ 1,800,544

1,634,246

$ 1,668,008

350
35O

$ 35O
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Sewez
~r~eet
F~dl

$ 52,686 $ 26,583

24,808

_$~ 52,686 $ 51,391

$ 1,094,061 $ ~,~52,458

23,067

$ 1,117,128 $ ~.,152,458

5,442,221
101,295
53,951

704,732
5,388,540

12,916
$ -~1,703,655

52,686

52,686

$ 24,808

o

24,433

$ $

19,903

500

°

49,241 19,903 500

418,281
32,311
15,967

105,842
619,740
24,433

1,216,574

269,985

(269,985)

$ 52,686 $

- 1,097,225 1,151,958
2,150
2,150 1,097,225 1,151,958

51,391 $ 1,117,12_8 , $ 1,152,458

912,092
12,916

2,249,183
7,312,890

10,487,081

$ 11,703,655
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Columbia County, Georgia

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Taxes - property
Taxes - other
Licenses and permits
Intergovemmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Contributions and donations
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Judicial system
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Housing and development
Miscellaneous

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal
Interest

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under)expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Proceeds from debt issuance
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Capital Projects Funds

Special Local CapRal Road/
Special Option Sales Drainage Airport
Revenue Tax Fund Projects Authority
Funds 1996-2000 Fund Fund

3,909,500 $
3,778,850

887,188
226,914

3,197,753
310,978
80,602 49,619
67,415
67,449

12,526,649 49,619

22,694
6,147,521
3,422,199

419,653
609,981
986,963

9,225

11,618,236

908,413

4,109,407
(963,676)

3,145,731

905,181

905,181

(855,562)

(855,562)

2,628,350

$ 1,772,788

4~54,144

774,220

$ 4,828,364

$ $

2,984,912

66,302
.

°

3,051,214

4,003,596
°

4,003,596

(952,382)

(2,ooo,ooo)
(2,000,000)
(2,952,382)

4,586,628

$ 1,634~246

350

$ 350
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$

903

903

$

W~ndm~
Sewer

FEEd

- $

83

83

Debtgerv~ee
F~d

Ob~S~o~

2,D0,890

22,872

2,133,762

2g~4ge~er~

~oEd

14,957

14,957

Fur~d~

6,020,390
3,778,850

887,188
3,211,826
3,197,753

310,978
235,338
67,415
67,449

17,777,187

7,768

542,970

550,738

(549,835) 83

311,330

311,330

(238,505) 83

238,505 2,067

$ $ 2,150

495,000
1,389,981
1,884,981

248,781

248,781

848,444

$ 1,097,225

180,604
180,604

(165,647)

1,317,605

1,317,605

1,151,958

$ 1,151,958

22,694
6,147,521
7,433,563

419,653
609,981
986,963

9,225
1,448,151

495,000
1,570,585

19,143,336

(1,366,149)

1,317,605
4,420,737

(2,963,676)
2,774,666

1,408,517

9,078,564

$ 10,487,081
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Columbia County, Georgia

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2005

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Duo from other funds
Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Aceruexi payroll ¯
Accrued compensated absences
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for inventories/prepaid items
Unreserved, undesignated

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Federal
Building Asset State Street

Standards Sharing Condemnation Lights
Fund Fund Fund Fund

$

605,428
2,674

$ 608,t02

$ 3,553
11,732
7,896

23,t81

54
2,674

582,193
584,921

$ 608,102

$ 26,718 $ 8,597 $

5,633

- 578,616

ii$I 26,718 $ 8,597 $ 584,249

$ $ $ 92,819

- 4,472

,97,291

486,958
486,958

26,718 8,597
26,718 8,597

.... $ 26,718 $ 8,597 $ 584,249
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30,757 $

°

$ 30,757 -$

449,706 $

200,433
621,789

3,066
1,274,994- $

Fua~

D~g
A~a~e

326,476 $

o

.

94,g18 $

o

326,476- -$ 94,818 -$

~eata~
Zavea~e
gez’v~ce~

99229
u.

-_

99,329

43 $ 38,085

12,770
- 5,777

~2,135

12,178- 56,632

1g,579
18,579

$ 30,757n,

234
3,066

1,215,062 .
1,218,362

$ 1,274,994

$

o

326,476
326,476

_$ 326,476 $

$ . $

94,818
94,818

94,818 $

~,381

5,184
6,565

92,764
92,764

99,329

Continued on the following pages.
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Cotumbia County, Georgia

Combhfing Balance Sheet - Continued
Nonma|or Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2005~

Assets.
Cash m~d’cs~h cc~al~ts
Iave~cments
Taxes ~q~le
Accounts rec~vable
Due f~om oth¢~ funds
Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued psyroll
Accrued compensated abscace.s
Deferred revenue
Due to othe¢ funds

Total liabilitics

Community
Center Community HoteY Multiple

Operations Greenspace Motel Grant
Fund Fund Fund Fund

$ 50 $.’ -

o

8,555

48~
"$ 9,086 $ . -
, --. , , - ,

$ 29,678 $
1,593 r
1,112

58,761
599,190
690r334

Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances 298 -
Reserved for inventories/prepaid items 48 t -
Fund balance . (682,027)

Total fi.md balaaccs . (681,248)

Total liabilities and fund balances
, $. . 9,086. $

"

$ $ -

26,832
314,812

_ $ 34.1,644. $_________~

$ 11,833 $

11,833

1,420

328,391
329,8ll

$ 341,644 $ -
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C~e~n ~d

Mez~oz~ Se~v~ce~
]Fw£

Sheriff%

$ 264,338 $
101,295

1,795

$ 367,428 $

1,025 $ $

- 25,251

1,250 1,479,378
.

2,275 $ 1,504,629 $

14,075 $ $ 2,325,889
- 201,295

30,884
- 237,615

561,218 4,162,492
6,695 12,916

14,075 $ 567,913 $ 5,861,090

$ 7,211 $

3,231
10,442

356,986
356,986

- $
.

°

27,903 $

22,706

50,609

66,263 $ 278,769
6,216 32,31[
1,182 [5,967

85,939
629,740

73,661 ~,03~726

206,438 208,824
6,695 12,916

281,119 4,606,624
494,252 4,828,364

$ 367,428 $

380
.

2,275 1,453,640
2,275 1,454,020

2,275 $ 1,504,629 $

14,075
14,075

14,075 $ 567,913 $ 5,861,090
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Columbia County, Georgia

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Taxes - property
Taxes - other
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Contributions and donations
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Judicial system
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Housing and development
Miscellaneous

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
ever (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Federal
Building Asset State

Standards Sharing Condemnation
Fund Fund Fund

887,188
17,711

116,753

15,825
9,998
’159

751
1r038,228

39,297
25

.

39/322

986,963

61,598

986,963 61,598

51,265 (51,441)

51,265 .(51,441)

533,656 78,159

$ .584,921 $ 26,718

31,640

31,640

7,682

7,682

915

$ 8,597

Street
Lights
Fund

- ,

983,600

18,166
44,763

1,046,529

.

1,231,208

1~231,208

(184,679)

(184,679)

671,637

486,958
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F~4

l}~g

Services

.

27,817

51

15~345
43,213

1,808,128

10,596

1,818,724

154,528
1,166

o

.

155,694

62,427
272

62,699

°

21,565

335

21,900

41,992

41,992

.

1,272,926
.

1,272,926

545,798

545,798

672,564

$ 1,218,362

62,699

22,694

7,725
30,419

,j--

1~221 155,694 (8,519)

1,22l

17,358

$ 18,579

.

(150,000) (25,000)
(150,000) (25,000)

5,694 37,699

320,782 57,119

$ 326,476 $ 94,818

°

(8,519)

101,283

$ 92,764

Continued on the following pages. 114



Columbia County, Georgia

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Continued
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Taxes - property
Taxes - oth~c
Licenses and permits
Iatergoveramental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Iavestment income
Contributions and donations
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Judicial system
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Housing and development
Miscellaneous

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Community
Center Community Hotel/

Operations Greenspace Motel
Fund Fund Fund

239,890

750
46,559

287,199

419,653

°

$ - $
- 349,724

209,203

Multiple
Grant
Fund

1,211

. 210~414

6,372.
6,552

362,648

$

217,445

.

296,883

1,500
419,653 . . 217,445 296,883 1,500

(132,454) (7,03 t 65,765 (l,s, oo),

(132,454) (7,031)

.. (548,794) 7,031

$ (681,248) $

65,765

264,046

$ 329,811

(1,5oo)

1,500..

$
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44,728
11,625

1,250
4,794

61,147 1,250

3,909,500 $ $
72,117

14,100

-.

3,357,009

°

14,799

3,909,500
3,778,850

887,188
226,914

3,197,753
310,978
80,602
67,415
67,449

3,981,617 14,100 3,371,808 12,526,649

53,661

53,661

4,g73,608 8,313

4,473,608 8,313

299,436
2,190,991

.

2,490,427

22,694
6,147,521
3,422,199

419,653
609,981
986,963

9,225
11,618,236

908,4137,486 1,250 (491,991) 5,787 881,381

(401,547)
(401,547)

(394,061)

751,047

356,986

4,109,407

4,109,407

1,250 3,617,416

1,025 (2,163~396")

$ 2,275 $ 1,454,020

.

5,787

8,288

(387,129)
(387,129)

494,252

$ 14,075 $ 494,252 $

4,109,407
(963,676)

3,145,731

4,054,144

774,220

4,828,364
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Columbia County, Georgia
Building Standards Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment income
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Housing and development
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Variance with
Final Budget -

Final Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

$ 896,091 $ 887,188 $ (8,903)
20,000 17,711 (2,289)

128,500 116,753 (11,747)
25,000 15,825 (9,175)

500 751 251
1,070,091 1,038,228 (31,863)

1,070,091
1,070,091

$

986,963 83,128
986,963 83,128,

51,265

533,656

$ 51,265

$ 584,921
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Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Other

Total revenues

Current:
Public safety

Total expenditures

I~zce~ (~e~e~e~ey) e~ zevea~e~
over (~er) ez~emd~t~re~

I~mmd ~alaaee - beg~N~g

$ 20,000 $ 9,998 $ (10,002)
159 159

42,000 (42,000~
62,000 I0,157 (51,843)

62,000 61,598 402
62,000 61,598 402

$ (51,441) $ ,(51,441)

78,159

$ 26,718
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Columbia County, Georgia
State Condemnation Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Public safety
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Variance with
Final Budget -

Final Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

$ 50,000 $ 39,297 $ (10,703)
- 25 25

50,000 39,322 (10,678)

50,000 31,640 18,360
50,000 31,640 18,360

7,682 $ 7,682

915

$ 8,597
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Charges for services
~vestment income
Contributions and donations
©t3aer

Total revenues

Ezpea~t~re~
Current:

Public works
Total expend2tures

]Fum~ balance - e~g

$ 983,600 $ 983,600 $
18,167 ~8,166 (1)
44,763 44,763

~84,680 - (~84,680)
1,231,210 1,046,529 (184,68~)

~,231,2~0 1,23~,208 2
~,23 ~,2~0 1,231,208 .2

(184,679) $

671,637

(184,679)

$ 486,958
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Columbia County, Georgia

Recreation Advisory Board Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Charges for services
Investment income
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Culture and recreation
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Final Actual
Budget Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

$ 52,000 $ 27,817
51

8,000 15,345

(24,183)
51

7,345
60,000 43,213 (16,787)

60,000 41,992 18,008
60,000 41,992 18,008

1,221 $

17,358

1,221"

$ 18,579
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Charges for services
Investment income

Total revenues

Current:
Public safety

Total expenditures

¯ Ezeee~ (~efic~e~ey} ¢~ reverence
cv®z (~dez~ ez~e~t~ree

~eg~ve)

$ ~,460,851 $ 1,808,128
10,596

$ 347,277
10,59,6

1,460,851 1,818,724 357,873

1,460,851
1,460,851

$ o

1,272,926 187,925
1,272,926 187,925

545,798

672,564

$ 1,218,362

$ 545,798
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Columbia County, Georgia
Jail Fund

Schedule of Revenues,’Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income

Total revenues

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Variance with
Final Budget -

Final Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

ii

$ 150,000 $ 154,528 $ 4,528
- 1,166 1,166

150,000 155,694 5,694

150,000 155,694 5,694

(15o,ooo) 050,000)
(150,000) , (150,000)

5,694$ 5,694 $

320,782

$ 326,476
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C~amZe~ ~m ~mmd ~a~am~® ~ BmdS®~ amd Ae~a~

Fine, s and forfeitures
~vestment income

Total revenues

Bzee~ (de~e~e~ey) ~ a’evem~e~
oyez (~mderr) ez/~er~d~t~a-e~

Trmxsfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Ezeess (deT~e~e~ey) ¢~ reve~e~ a~d
¢thez ~m~e~ ~¢~zee~ ever (u~der)
e~rpen~re~ and o~kez T~ame~ use~

IFu~d balla~ee o be~

IFu~d b~anee - e~d~g

Vs~ee w[t~

$ 25,000 $ 62,427 $ 37,427
- 272 272

25,000 62,699. 37,699

25,000 62,699 37,699

(25,000)_ (25,000)
(25,000) (zs,eoo)

$ 37,69937,699

57,119

$ 94,818

124



Columbia County, Georgia

Supplemental Juvenile Services Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Charges for services
Investment income

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Judicial system
Miscellaneous

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Variance with
Final Budget -

Final Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

$ 49,000 $ 21,565 $ (27,435)
- 335 335

49,000 21,900 (27,100)

41,000 22,694 18,306
8,000 7,725 275

49,000 30,419 18,581

$ (8,519) $ (8,519)

101,283

$ 92,764
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Charges for services
Contributions ~d donations
Other

Total revenues

E~z~e~tuzes
Current:

Health ~md welfare
Total expenditures

E~reess (degeneracy) ~£ zeve~ues
ever (u~der} e~pe~ad~res

Fund b~II~ce - beSim~ing

Fund bs~nce ° e~di~g

F~ Ac~ ?os~.dv®
~u~ge~ k~z¢~tz (HeZ~d~e}

$ 337,000 $ 239,890 $ (97,~ 10)
- 750 750

18,800 46,559 (72,241)
455,800 287,199 (168,69.1./.

455,800 419,653 36,147
455,800 419,653 36,t47

(132,454)

(548,794)

$ (681,248)

$ (132,454)
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Columbia County, Georgia
Community Greenspace Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Intergovernmental
Investment income
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Oalture and recreation
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Variance with
Final Budget -

Final Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

$ - $ 209,203 $ 209,203
9,000 1,211 (7,789)

526,501 (526,501)
535,501 210,414 (325,087)

535,501 217:45 318,056
535,501 217,445 318,056

$ (7,031) $ (7,031)

7,031

$
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Taxes - other than property
~vestment income
Con~butions ~nd donations

To~l revenues

$ 324,490 $ 349,724$ 25,234
6,372 6,372
6,552 6,552

324,490 362,648 38,158

324,490 296,883 27,607
324,490 296,883 27,607

$ - 65,765 $ 65,765

264,046

$ 329,811
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Columbia County, Georgia
Multiple Grants Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Variance with
Final Budget -

Final Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

$ io,ooo $ - $ (lo,ooo).
lO,OOO (lO,OOO).

10,000 1,500 8,500
I0,000 1,500 8,500

(1,500) $ (1,500).

1,500 "
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Frees and forfeitures
]~nvestraent income
Contributions and donations
Other

Total revenues

Current:
Culture and reereztion

Total expend2tures

Zzee~ (de~e~e~cy) of revenue~
over (~der) ezper~tuze~

Other Tm~e~g ~ource~ (u~e~)
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Zzee~ (~e~e~e~cy) o~ reve~e~ aa~
other T~g~cbg zo~zce~ over (~de~’)
ezI~e~t~re~ a~ othez fa~e~g ~e~

I?~d balance = ~eg~g

L~z~ Aet~ Po~ve
B~5~et A~o~a~z (~ez~ve)

$ 50,000 $ 44,728 $ (5,272)
4,000 11,625 7,625
2,000 (2,ooo)

406,000 4,79~ {~.o~,20~)
462,000 6m47 (~oo,g,5~

60,000 53,56~ 6,339
60,000 53,66~ 6,339

402,000 7,486 (39<5~0

(402,000) (40~,547) 453
. (402,000) .(40~,547) 453

$ (394,061) $ .(394,061)

751,047

$ 356,986
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Columbia County, Georgia
Clean and Beautiful Memorial Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Contributions and donations

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Culture and recreation
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Variance with
Final Budget -

Final Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

$ 1,000 $ 1,250 $ 250
1,000 1,250 250

1,000 - 1,000
1,000 - 1,000

$ - 1,250 $ 1,250

1,025

$ 2,275
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T~es - property
T~es- other

Total revenues

Current:
Public safety

Total c~enditures

Other [’~¢[~Z sources (~es)
Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Ezce~ (~ef~e[e~c~,) o~ reve~ue~ emd
other fm~mc[mZ ~o~arce.~ oyez (um£er}
ez~e~d~tuze~ ~d other T~ci~g; u~es

Fund b~i~ce o e~d~s

V,mier~ce w~th.

4,015,555 $ 3,909,500 $ (106,055]
72,117 72,[ 17

4,0t5,555 3,981,617 (33,938]_

4,5~6,555 4,473,608 42,947
4,516,555 4,473,608 42,947

(50[,900) (491,991) 9,009

501,000 4,109,407 3,608,407
501,000 4,109,407 3,608,407

3,617,416

.. (2,163,396)

$ 1,454,020

$ 3,617,416
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Columbia County, Georgia

Sheriff’s Gifts/Donations Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Contributions and donations

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Public safety
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Variance with
Final Budget -

Final Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

$ 9,000 $ 14,100 $ 5,100
9,000 14,100 5,100

9,000 8,313 687
9,000 8,313 687

$ 5,787 $ 5,787

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

8,288

$ 14,075
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Taxes - o~er
Lnvestmerlt ~ncom¢

Total revenues

Expemd~ze=
Current:

Public safety
Public works

Total expenditures

Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

IB=ce=~ (de~c~emcy) of ~’even~e~ mad
ot~er f~¢~Z ~o~ee~ oyez (~de~)
e~pe~di~re~ amd o~er f~a~ch~g ~e~

F~md ~a~amce - begh~g

Fund b~l~nce - e~d~g

V~r~a~ee w~.tIh

3,065,768 $ 3,357,009 $ 291,241
- 14,799 ~4,799

3,065,768 3,371,808 306,040

576,674 299,436 277,238
2A89,094 2,190,991 298,103
3,065,768 2,490,427 575,341

- 881,381 881,381

$

., (387,129) ,(387,12,9).

, (387,129) (387,129~

494,252 $ . 494,252.,

$ 494,252
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Columbia County, Georgia
Debt Service Fund - 1998 General Obligation Bond

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Taxes - property
Investment income

Total revenues

Expenditures
Debt service:

Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Variance with
Final Budget -

Final Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

1,885,050 $ 2,110,890 $ 225,840
- 22,872 22,872

1,885,050 2,133,762 248,712

495,000 495,000
1,390,050 1,389,981 69
1,885,050 1,884,981 69

-’ 248,781 248,781-

$ 248,781 $

848,444

248,781

$ 1,097,225
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Investment income
Total revenues

ExI~erm~tua’e~
Debt service:

Principal
]Interest

Total expenditures

Other ff~a~c~ ~euree~ (u~e~)
Proceeds from bond premium

Total other financing sources (uses)

]Fund balance z begi~ng

F~nd balance - end~g

$ 15,000 $ 14,957 $ (43)
15,ooo

1,~52,001 - 1,152,00~.
£80,604 ~80,604

1,332,605 180,604 1,152,001

(1,317,605) (165,647) 1,151,958-

1,317,605 1,317,605
1,317,605 1,317,605

$ 1,151,958$ 1,151,958

$ 1,151,958
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Columbia County, Georgia

Combining Statement of Net Assets
Internal Service Funds

June 30, 2005

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Due from other f~nc~
Prepaid items

Total current assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued compensated absences
Due to other funds

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets
Unrestricted net assets

Total net assets

Customer
Employee Risk Service
Medical Management Information

Fund Fund Center Total

534,831 $ - $ $ 534,831
15,627 228 - 15,855

- 20,332 8,446 28,778
- 294 23 317

550,458 20,854 8,469 579,781

550,458 20,854 8,469 579,781

295,557 18,183 2,448 316,188
- 1,275 1,014 .2,289
- 1,396 5,007 6,403

1,048,318 - - 1,048,318
1,343,875 20,854 8,469 1,373,198

1,343,875 20,854 8,469 1,373,198

(793,417) - (793,417)
(793,417) $ $ $ (793,417)
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C~rges for services
~tergovez~ae~zta~
Other

Total operating revenues

O~era~g e~r~em~e~
’ Perso~al[ services
Purchased/contracted services
Supphes and ~naterb/s
Inteffu~d/~terdepartmental charges

To~1 operating e~pemes

N~r~e~ea’a~g reve~ae (e~pe~e)
[n~erest earned

Total nonoperating revenue (expense)

C~mBe h~ me~ ~ets

Z~apbyee ~/£~ 3ezv~ee

3,721,984 $
- 907,~06

35,731

$ - $
91,839

3.,72~84
998,945
35,731

3,757,7~5 907,]06 91,839 4,756,660

3,856,152

47,~49

89,363
810~74

7,269

73,204
R4,963
3,772

~62,467
. 4,68~,589

47,~49
3,903,301 907,~06

045,580

91,839 4,902,246

(~45,586)

7,707 7,707
7,707

037,879)

(65s,53~)

(793,417) 

- 7,707

$

037,879)

(655,538)
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Columbia County, Georgia

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and others
Cash paid to employees

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Investing activities
Interest on investments

Net cash provided (used) in investing
activities

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents/investments

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year

End ofyear

Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities
Operating income (loss)

Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Deferred charges / prepaid expense
Due from other funds
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Customer
Employee Risk Service
Medical Management Information

Fund Fund Center

$ 3,742,088 $ 907,937
(3,499,577) (815,960)

- (91,977)

242,511

7,707

7,707

250,218

284,613

$ 534,831 $

$ (145,586) $

(15,627)

41,164

362,560
388,097

$ 242,511

831
(10)

(8,816)
10,609
(2,614)

$ 91,839
(16,950)
(74,889)

$

(2)
(370)

2,157
(1,785)

Total

$ 4,741,864
(4,332,487)

(166,866)

242,511

7,707

7,707

250,218

284,613

$ 534,831

$ (145,586)

(14,796)
(12)

(9,186)
53,930
(4,399)

362,560
388,097

$ 242,511
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AGENCY FUNDS
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Columbia County, Georgia

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Clerk of Superior Court
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Liabilities
Due to other funds "
Due to others

Total liabilities

Probate Court
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Liabilities
Due to other funds
Due to others

Total liabilities

Magistrate Court
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Liabilities
Due to other fimds
Due to others

Total liabilities

SheriWs Office
Assets.
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Liabilities
Due to other funds
Due to others

Total liabilities

July 1, 2004 Additions Deductions June 30, 2005

$ 891,910 $ 6,009,265 $ 5,957,745 $ 943,430
$ 891,910 $ 6,009,265 $ 5,957,745 $ 943,430

$ 306,879 $ 2,981,320 $ 3,288,199 $
585,031 3,338,914 2,980,515 943,430

$ 891,910 $ 6,320,234 $ 6,268,714 $ 943,430

$ 309,840 $ 2,053,095 $ 2,146,6"29 $ 216,306
$ 309,840 $ 2,053,095 $ 2,146,62===~=9 $ 216,306

$ 145,371 $ 1,174,441 $ 1,319,812 $
164,469 985,287 933,450 216,306

$ 309,840-$ 2,159,728 $ 2,253,262$ 216,306

$ 124,917 $ 665,680 $ 681,924 $ 108,673
$ 124,9!7 $ 665,680 $ 681,924 $ 108,___673_~_.

60,159 $ 271,167 $ 331,326 $
64,758 429,739 385,824 108,673

$ 124,917$ 700,906 $ 717,150$ 108,673

$ 333,028 $ 714,898 $
$ 333,028 $ 714,898$

721,440 $ 326,486
721,440 $ 326,486

$ 7,173 $
325,855

$ 333,O28 $

98,598 $ 105,771 $
624,546 623,915 326,486
723,144 $ 729,68___~6 $ 32~,486
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Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

Due to other f~nds
Due to others

Total liabilities

Gemera~ T~=~ amd,,AKeaey
Aaaet~
Cash aad cash equivalems

Total assets

Due to others
Total liabilities

A~eet~
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

L~zb~t~e~
Due to other funds
Due to oihers

Total liabilities

$ 725,221 $ 76,936~442 $ 75,281,215
~

380,z~48
$ 725,22.1 , $ =

$ 181,501 $ 26,537,20~ $ 26,718,705 $
5~3,720 ~8,506,155 ~g,669,427 380,69g

$ 725,221 $ 75,093,359 $ 75,388,132 $ 380,~8

$ 96,324 $ ~53 $ 96,477 $
$ 96,324 $ 153 $ 96,477 $

$ 96,32~ $ ~.53 $ 96,~77 $
$ 96,324 $ 1.53 ,$ 96,477.. $

$ 2,481,240 $ 84,379,533 $ g4,gg5,~30 $ 1,975,3~3
$ 2,~81,2~0" $ 84,37.9,533 $ g4,gg5,~30 . $ 1,975,3~3

$ 701,093 $ 31,062,730 $ 31,763,g13 $
~.,7g0,157 53,g84,794 53,699,60g

1,975~34.3."

$ 2,48.1,240 $ 84,947,524 i’$ g5,453,421 $ 1,975,343
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Columbia County, Georgia
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Comparative Schedules By Source
June 30, 2005 and 2004

Governmental funds capital assets:
Land
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure
Vehicles, machinery and equipment
Construction in progress

Total governmental funds capital assets

2005

$ 28,207,656
71,200,379

6,506,255
155,797,319
15,587,136
17,126,589

$ 294,425,334

2004

$ 25,943,275
69,040,095
2,502,659

147,574,814
11,929,049
9,829,437

$ 266,819,329

Investments in governmental funds capital assets by source:
General fired
Special revenue fund
Capital projects fund

Total governmental funds capital assets

$ 24,537,765
2,022,617

267,864,952

$ 294,425,334

$ 23,575,490
1,026,103

242,217,736

$ 266,819,329
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Columbia County, Georgia
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule of Changes By Function and Activity
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005

Function and Activity

General Government:
Legislative
Judicial
Executive and Administrative

Public Safety

Public Works

Culture and Recreation

Health and Welfare

Housing and Development

Total governmental funds capital assets

Governmental
F-unds-C--apital

Assets
July 1, 2004 Additions

$ 5,872,248 $ 1,283,425
17,059,515 563,111
9,466,269 1,336,936

37,718,248 5,566,452

174,887,542 13,485,977

16,058,304 5,458,071

4,781,376 309,713

975,827 82,795

$ 266,819,329 $ 28,086,480

Deductions

422,607

41,968

15,900

$ 48O,475

Governmental
F unds-eapi~l

Assets
June 30, 2005

$ 7,155,673
17,622,626
10,803,205

42,862,093

188,331,551

21,500,475

5,091,089

1,058,622

$ 294,425,334
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Columbia County, Georgia

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS

June 30~ 2005

Table 15

Date of Incorporation
Form of Government

Number of Employees:
Police
Other

Area in square miles

1790
Five Member Board of Commissioners

4 Commission Districts, Chairman elected at large

311
465

29O

Columbia County Facilities and Services:
Miles of County maintained roads
Culture and Recreation:

Police Protection:

Court System:

Gym Complex Center
Community Centers
Parks
Libraries
Miles of lake shoreline

Number of Personnel
Number of calls for service
Number of prisoners processed
Civil & criminal cases processed

Number of traffic and fish & game cases
Number of marriage licenses
Number of gun permits

653

l
3
9
3

1,200

322
50,829
3,113
8,111

7,684
607
629

Sewer System:

Water System:

Number of treatment plants
Maximum daily capacity of treatment plant in gallons
Number of Accounts

Daily water treatment production capacity in gallons
Number of Accounts

4
9,350,000

26,591

39,000,000
32,785

Facilities and Services not included in the reporting entity:
Education:

Number of elementary schools
Number of middle schools
Number of high schools
Number of alternative schools

Fire Protection:
Number of unincorporated fire stations
Number of fire stations within city limits:

Grovetown
Harlem

Medical Facilities in the Metro Augusta area:
Number of hospitals
Number of patient beds

16
7
4
1

I9

7
3,000
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The following water and sewerage rates became effective in April 2005.

Residential

Water T ap.._~_.e
1" and Smaller

Water Sewer
Amount Base Per 1,000 &allons Base Per 1,000 gallons

<10,000 gallons $7.92 $1.63 $9.30 $1.83
10,000 - 29,999 gallons 7.92 2.26 Levelized Winter Billing
30,000 - 49,999 gallons 7.92 3.27
>50,000 gallons 7.92 4.44

Commercial

Water Sewer
Water Ta~ Size Base Per 1,000 gallons Base Per 1,000 gallons

1.0" $14.05 $1.64 $16.58 $1.83
1.5" 31.61 1.64 37.31 1.83
2.0" 56.06 1.64 66.32 1.83
3.0" 126.43 1.64 149.22 1.83
4.0" 224.77 1.64 265.31 1.83
6.0" 505.18 1.64 600.26 1.83

Source: Columbia County Water and Sewer Services Division.

~ap and Cen~ect~en Charge~

All water and sewer tap-in fees are based on three different conditions that exist in the System.
These conditions are as follows:

(A) Applicant applies for a tap inside a developed area in which the developer has furnished
water and/or sewer mains, taps, and meter boxes.

(13) Applicant applies for a tap inside a developed area in which the developer has furnished
only the water and/or sewer mains.

(C) Applicant lives adjacent to a water and/or sewer main installed by the System.

Residential Water Tap-in Fees.

(t) Cost of 5/8" residential service tap:
(A) $323
(B) 646
(C) 969

(2) Cost of 1" residential service tap:
(A) $445
(B) 727
(C) 1,091
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(3) Cost of I ½" residential service tap:
(A) $ 565
03) 969
(c) 1,213

Residential Sewer Tap-in Fees.

(1) Cost for residential sewer tap:
(A) $646
03) 807
(C) 969

Commercial Water and Sewer Tap-In Fees.

(1) Cost for 1" service for commercial use:

Water Sewer
(A) $323 $ 807
03) 807 1,t30
(C) 1,212 1,347

(2) Cost for 1 ½" service for commercial use:

Water Sewer
(A) $807 $ 969
03) 1,049 1,253
(C) 1,453 1,526

(3) Cost for 2" service for commercial use:

Water Sewer
(A) $1,050 $4,178
(]3) 1,364 5,007
(C) 1,888 5,653

(4) Cost for 3" service for commercial use:

Water Sewer
(A) $2,182 $6,784
03) 2,745 7,592
(C) 3,231 8,399

(5) Cost for 4" service for commercial use:

Water Sewer
(A) $3,554 $12,114
03) 4,361 12,818
(C) 4,846 13,729
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(6) Cost for 6" service for commercial use:

Water Sewer
(A) $7,107 $24,230
(B) 7,915 26,652
(C) 8,884 28,267

The following table shows the ten largest users of the System and the revenues derived from such
customers for the fiscal year ended Jtme 30, 2005.

Total Percentage of Total
User Business ¯ Revenues O Qperating Revenues

City of Grovetown Local Government $350,924 1.94%
Quebecor Manufacturer 195,128 1.08
City Hall (Harlem) Local Government 168,976 0.94
B randon Wilde Retirement Community 95,383 0.53
Columbia County Board of Education Local Government 81,848 0.45
Westwood Club Apartment Complex 41,615 0.23
Wedgewood Apartments Apartment Complex 40,639 0.23
Jensens Inc. (Wymberly) Retirement Community 38,437 0.21
Shenandoah, Ridge Assoc. Apartment Complex 33,858 0.19
Club Car Inc. Manufacturer 29,721 0.1__.__66

Total $ 1:076:529

Source: Columbia County Water and Sewer Services Division.

Source: Columbia County Water and Sewer Services Division.

The following table presents the number of customers of the System for the last ten years.

Water and Sewerage Customers

Year Water Sewer Total

1996 22,235 16,911 39,146
1997 23,197 17,919 41,116
1998 24,009 18,833 42,842
1999 25,069 19,739 44,808
2000 26,001 20,536 46,537
2001 26,919 21,281 48,200
2002 28,054 22,332 50,386
2003 29,853 23,882 53,735
2004 31,240 25,170 56,410
2005 32,834 26,191 59,025

Source: Columbia County Water and Sewer Services Division.
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Historical Water and Wastewater Demand

Set forth below are water demand statistics for the past five fiscal years.

Plant 200..___!1 2002

Blanchard Avg. Flow MGD 9.91 10.10
3.17 MGD Max. Flow MGD 16.86 20.84

Clark’s Hill Avg. Flow MGD 1.72 1.73
8.0 MGD Max. Flow MGD 3 ;01 3.51

Total Avg. Flow MGD 11.63 11.83
Max. Flow MGD 19.87 24.35

Source: Columbia County Water and Sewer Services Division.

2003 200____4 200___55

9.67 11.64 12.49
14.94 23.26 23.26

1.90 2.70 2.45
3.82 3.98 3.78

11.57 14.34 14.94
18.76 27.24 27.04

Set forth below are wastewater demand statistics for the past five fiscal years.

Plant 200...__!.1 200_..__22 200____~3 2004

Reed Creek Avg. Flow MGD 3.22 3.07 3.32 3.31
4.55 MGD Max. Flow MGD 4.65 4.08 5.50 4.46

Crawford Creek Avg. Flow MGD 0.98 0.91 1.06 0.88
1.5 MGD Max. Flow MGD 1.39 1.24 1.90 1.98

Little River Avg. Flow MGD 1.79 2.00 2.39 2.42
3.0/6.0 MGD Max. Flow MGD 2.59 2.71 3.62 2.99

Kiokee Creek Avg. Flow MGD N/A N/A N/A N/A
0.3 MGD Max. Flow MGD N/A N/A N/A N/A

Source: Columbia County Water and Sewer Services Division.

2005

3.2.1
5.56

0.94
1.43

2.50
3.74

0.02
0.05
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Set forth below is a historical, comparative summary of the operating revenues of the System for
the past five fiscal years. For more detailed information regarding the financial results and condition of the
System, see the audited financial statements of the System for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, included
in the financial section of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The information in the following
table has been extracted from the audited financial statements of the County for the fiscal years ended June
30, 2001 through 2004.

COLUM]3IA COUNTY WATER AND SEWERAGE SYSTEM
Summary of Operating Results

Fiscal Years Ended June 30

Operating Revenue
Charges for Services
Tap Fees
Other

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses
Operating Expenses
’Depreciation and Amortization

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Non-Operating Revenues and (Expenses)
Interest Income
Interest Expense
Other

Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)

Income before Contributions/Transfers

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

$13,295,603 $14,619,971 $14,744,628 $15,416,122 $16,590,135
682,032 863,564 1,278,702 1,340,324 1,410,433

0 0 74,138 34,425 53,395
13,977,635 15,483,535 16,097,468 16,790,871 18,053,963

6,170,639 7,187,774 7,518,751 9,202,214 9,205,773
3,511,489 3,778,252 4,305,952 4,449,845 4,844,400
9,682,128 10,966,026 11,824,703 13,652,059 14,050,173

4,295,507 4,517,509 4,272,765 3,138,812 4,003,790

2,473,439 918,302 290,766
(3,326,632) (2,107,218) (2,099,158)

21.789 344837 0
(831,404) (844,079) (1,808,392)

3,464,103 3,673,430 2,464,373

161,438
(2,043,152)

0
(1,881,714)

1,257,098

Contributions/Transfers
Capital Contributions
Transfers

Total Contributions/Transfers

392,843
.(2,775,192)

0

Net Income/Change in Net Assets

1,949,136 2,297,201 2,129,501 2,954,986 6,499,686
0 (628,569) 0 0 0

1,949,136 1,668,632 2,129,501 2,954,986 6,499,686

$5,413.239 $5,342,062 $4,593,874 $4,212,084
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Historical Debt Service Coverage

The following table shows the historical debt service coverage of the System for the past five
fiscal years.

Fiscal Year ended June 30
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

Net Income/Change in Net Assets
Plus:

Interest Expense
Depreciation and Amortization

Less:
Interest Income on

Construction Fund and
Investment Account

Capital Contributions
Other Nonrecurring Revenue

$5,413,239 $5,342,062 $4,593,874 $4,212,084 $8,121,127

3,326,632 2,107,218 2,099,158 2,043,152 2,775,192
3,511,489 3,778,252 4,305,952 4,449,845 4,844,400

$6,838,121 $5,885,470 $6,405,110 $6,492,997 $7,619,592

$2,473,439 $ 439,048

1,949,136 2,297,201
21,789 344,837

$4,444,364 $3,081,086

$ 12,604 $ 54,288 $147,162

2,129,501 2,954,986 6,499,686
0 0 0

$2,142,105 $3,009,274 $6,646,848

Net Income Available for Debt
Service $7,806,996 $8,146,446 $8,856,879 $7,695,807 $9,093,871

Total Annual Debt ServiceO)

Historical Debt Service Coverage

$5,086,108 $4,115,840 $4,542,424 $4,646,589 $5,619,361

1.53x 1.98x 1.95x 1.66x 1.62x

Total annual debt service includes principal and interest of outstanding revenue bonds only,
excludes GEFA Loans.
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General Obligation
Bonds Disclosure



Pursuant to an election held in the County in 2000, the County authorized the levy and collection of a special purpose local
option sales and use tax (the "Existing Sales and Use Tax"), which commenced on January 1,2001, and will expire on December 31,
2005. Pursuant to an election held in the County in 2004, the County authorized the levy and collection of a special purpose local
option sales and use tax, which will commence on January 1, 2006, for a period of free not to exceed five years or until such time as
$100 million is collected. The County entered into intergovernmental agreements with the Cities of Harlern and Grovetown, Georgia.
Pursuant to these agreements, the County is required to remit 2.7 % and 5.8% of the proceeds of the Sales and Use Tax to Harlem and
Grovetown, respectively. The amounts remitted to the cities will not be available to pay debt service on the bonds. Set forthbelow are
historical collections of the County’s portion of the Existing Sales and Use Tax for the past five calendar years. These historical
collections are indicative of anticipated collections of the Sales and Use Tax; however, no assurance can be made that future collections
will equal or exceed past collections of the Existing Sales and Use Tax.

County’s Portion of
Calendar Year Existing Sales and Uses Tax

2001 $ 8,886,941
2002 9,755,012
2003 10,337,743
2004 11,673,323
2005(1) 9,449,686

(t) Nine months of collections.

Tar~ Levies ~nd Ce~neetien

The Columbia County Tax Commissioner collects taxes which have been levied by the State of Georgia, the County, the
Columbia County School District and the Cities of Grovetown and Harlem. Tax biUs are normally mailed in September and may
be paid without interest or penalty through November 15th of each year. However, whenever the tax bills are mailed a taxpayer
has 60 days to pay. After the due date, interest at the rate of 1% per month (or any portion thereof) and a penalty fee of 10% per
annum (after 90 days) are added.

Calendar % of Total Outstanding
Year Total Tax Levy Delinquent

of Lew Total Lev@) Collections(z) Collected Taxes

2001 14,314,939 14,306,871 99.94 8,069
2002 14,962,378 14,943,278 99.87 19,100
2003 16,087,795 16,068,370 99.88 19,425
2004 21,163,294 21,063,179 99.53 100,116
2005 23,756,299 22,011,433 92.66 1,744,866

(1) Includes all taxes levied by the Columbia County Board of Commissioners only.

(~) As of November 18, 2005.

Source: Columbia County Tax Commissioner.
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Tzx ]l~es - I~5

Set forth below is information concerning the rate of levy of property taxes per $1,000 of assessed value (millage rates)
of the County for the past five calendar years.

County Totals
Calendar Debt School State of Unincorporated Incorporated

Year Net M&O Service Fire(D District Georgia Are....../a Area
2001 7.35 0.35 17.18 0.25 25.13 25.13
2002 7.05 0.65 17.18 0.25 25.13 25.13
2003 6.93 0.77 17.18 0.25 25.13 25.13
2004 6.93 0.77 1.68 17.18 0.25 26.81 25.13
2005 7.03 0.67 1.68 17.18 0.25 26.81 25.13

(l)Fire Tax applies to unincorporated areas only.

Source: Columbia County Tax Commissioner.

~rincip~! Taxpayers

Set forth below are the ten largest taxpayers of the County in 2005. No independent investigation has been made of,
and consequently no representation can be made as to, the financial condition of any of the taxpayers listed below or that such
taxpayers will continue to maintain their status as major taxpayers in the County.

Assessed Valuation Taxes Levied

1. Quebecor World Inc. $32,605,681 $229,218
2. John Deere Commercial Products 30,055,071 211,287
3. Georgia Power 23,967,276 168,490
4. Club Car Inc. 16,889,274 118,478
5. Pollard Lumber Company 16,050,267 112,499
6. Bell South Telecommunications 11,928,438 83,857
7. WalMart Real Estate Business 11,203,699 78,762
8. Greenfield Industries 7,974,921 56,064
9. Georgia Iron Works 7,135,778 50,165
10. Atlanta Gas Light Company 6,370,765 44386

$164,181,170 $1,153,606

Source: Columbia County Tax Commissioner.

174



S
IN

G
L

E
  A

U
D

IT



CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & FINANCIAL ADVISORS
Augustar Georgia Office

John P. Gillion, Jr., CPA, PFS, CFS, CVA, CFP~
J.T. Cosnahan, CPA, CFE, FCPA, DABFA, CICA, CGFM

Robert D. Huntley, Jr., CPA
Rep E. Whiddon, CPA, CVA
Brenda F. Carroll, CPA, CFE, CIA, CICA, FCPA

Benjamin B. Barmore, CPA, MCP, CITP
W. Lee Hammond, CPA

To the Board of Commissioners
Columbia County, Georgia
Evans, Georgia

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business type activities, the
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Columbia County, Georgia as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005 which collectively comprise the
County’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 8, 2005. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Columbia County, Georgia’s internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting.
Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters
in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in
relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the
internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free of
material misstatements, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statements amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

-!-75
The Atrium, 3633 Wheeler Road, Suite 200, Augusta, Georgia 30909 / Telephone (706) 855-9500 / Telefax (706) 855-2900 (www.bairdepas.com)

132 Railroad Street. Thomson. Georgia 30824 / Telenhone (706~ 595-7764 / Telefax (706) 595-7288



To the Board of Commissioners
Columbia County, Georgia
Page 2

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners, audit committee,
management, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

December 8, 2005
Augusta, Georgia

BAIRD & COMPANY, CPAS, LLC
Certified Public Accountants
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & FINANCIAL ADVISORS
Augusta, Georgia Office Thomxon. Georeia Office

John P. Gillion, Jr., CPA, CFP®, PFS, CFS, CVA
J.T. Cosnahan, CPA, CFE, FCPA, DABFA, CICA, CGFM,

DABFA
Robert D. Huntley, Jr., CPA
Rep E. Whiddon, CPA, CVA
Brenda F. Carroll. CPA. CIA. CFE. CICA. FCPA

Benjamin B. Barmore, CPA, MCP, CITPW. Lee Hammond, CPA

To the Board of Commissioners
Columbia County, Georgia
Evans, Georgia

Ce~p~ar~ce
We have audited the compliance of Columbia County, Georgia, with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2005. Columbia County, Georgia’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal
programs is the responsibility of Columbia County, Georgia’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on Columbia County Georgia’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A- 133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133, require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a maj or federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about Columbia County, Georgia’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on
Columbia County, Georgia’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Columbia County, Georgia, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2005.

~Ir£err~a~ Ceratre~ Over Cer~p~ance
The management of Columbia County, Georgia is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Columbia County,
Georgia’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material

1 -71-74
The Atrium, 3633 Wheeler Road, Suite 200, Augusta, Georgia 30909 / Telephone (706) 855-9500 / Telefax (706) 855-2900 (www.bairdcpas.eom)

132 Railroad Street, Thomson, Georgia 30824 / Telephone (706) 595-7764 / Telefax (706) 595-7288 (www.barmoreandhammond.eom)



To The Board of Commissioners
Columbia County, Georgia
Page -2-

effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation to a major federal
program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the
normal course of performing their assigned, functions. We noted no matters involving the internal
control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners, audit
committee, management, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

BAIRD & COMPANY, CPAS, LLC
Certified Public Accountants

December 8, 2005
Augusta, Georgia
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Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor
Program Title

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Community Development Block Grant

U.S. Department of Justice
Juvenile Accountability Block Grant
Juvenile Accountability Block Grant

Federal
CFDA Grant Federal

Number Number Expenditures

14.219 00p-y036-1-2389

16.523 00B-ST-001
16.523 02B-ST-002

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant
Family Solutions Program Grant/CYCC

16.592 2002-LB-BX-1932
16.540 03J-02-0304-0008

U.S. Department of Interior
(Passed through the Georgia Department of Natural
Resources)
Reed Creek Park Redevelopment

U.S. Department of Transportation
(Passed through the Georgia Department of
Transportation)
UMTA/Transit Operating Assistance
UMTA/Transit Operating Assistance

$ 8,545

3,307
10,308

ISTEA
Transportation Enhancement

13,615

697
14,096
28,408

15.916 13-00809 75,000

20.507 GA-18-9023
20.507 GA-18-9024

20.205 STP-0002-00(284)
20.205 STP-000E(107)

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Hazard Mitigation 83.516
HMGP - Local Government Plan 83.557
Community Emergency Response Team 83.564
Local All Hazards Emergency Operations Planning Agreement 83.562

HMGP 1033-0128 (1)
HMGP 1311-0009

Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program - Ridge Crossing
Homeland Security Grant

PDMC-PJ-04-GA-2003-008
ODP FY03 Phase II

97.017
97.004

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

97,053
53,798

150,851

130,000
115,042
245,042
395,893

159,015
1,081

34,677
21,272

216,044

64,200
448,287
512,487
728,53I

$ ~,236,378
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, GEORGIA

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity
of Columbia County, Georgia and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Note 2 - Non-cash Awards

Columbia County, Georgia did not receive any non-cash federal awards during the year ended
June 30, 2005.
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COLUIYf~[A COUHTX£~ GEORGLA

SCEEDULE OF F~D~!~GS Alh~ QUESTIONED COSTS

A. An unqualified opinion was issued on the financial statements of Columbia County,
Georgia.

B. Our audit of the financial statements disclosed no material weaknesses in intemal
controls over financial reporting.

C. Our audit of the financial statements disclosed no instances of noncompliance with
laws, regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements that are
material to the basic financial statements.

D. Our audit of compliance with the types of compliance requirements applicable to
the County’s major program disclosed no material weaknesses in internal controls
over compliance.

E. An unqualified opinion was issued on Columbia County, Georgia’s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements applicable to its major federal program.

F. Our audit disclosed no audit findings which relate to federal awards which are
required to be reported.

G. The major federal program for Columbia County, Georgia for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005 is:

Pro~r~ Name CFDA~

Homeland Security Grant 97.004

H. The threshold for deternfining Type A programs for Columbia County, Georgia is
$300,000.

I. Columbia County, Georgia qualified as a low risk auditee.

F~ra~ir~g~ Re~zte£ to the ~u£~t of the B~s~c F~rm~c~[ St~ater~er£~ of Co~z~biz
Cour~ty~ Georgiz

T̄here were no findings noted for the year ended June 30, 2005 which are required to be
reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

F~d~gs z~d quest~oraed Costs ]Xe~zte£ to the Au£~ oil Feder~ Aw~r£s.

There were no findings noted for the year ended June 30, 2005 which are required to be
reported under OMB Circular A-133 criteria.
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